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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: My name is

          3  Council Member James Sanders, Jr., and I am the

          4  Chairman of the Economic Development Committee, and

          5  of course, I have a prepared script, but I want to

          6  depart from it for a second.

          7                 As a child of the working class, I

          8  know what unemployment means.  I understand that

          9  unemployment, it saps your strength, it takes away

         10  your dignity, you no longer have the ability to come

         11  home on a Friday night, slap your money on the

         12  table, and call your children before you and say,

         13  this is why I work hard.  This is how we can pay our

         14  bills.  Unemployment hurts families, it ensures that

         15  people cannot fulfill their dreams, and it is bad

         16  for everyone, including this City.

         17                 And we, as elected officials, have

         18  the responsibility to go beyond a mere ringing of

         19  wrists, a mere crying the blues, or making grand

         20  theories of why this happens.  We have the

         21  responsibility to do something about this problem,

         22  and indeed, we must.  And we will do it in this City

         23  Council, and we are not talking about a lifetime

         24  from now.

         25                 I am pleased to hold this joint
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          2  hearing of the Committee on General Welfare, the

          3  Economic Committee, and the Select Committee on

          4  Community Development.  Although, there have been

          5  encouraging signs,  New York City still continues to

          6  experience high, overall, unemployment.

          7                 At the same time, a crisis looms for

          8  employers with increasing need for a skilled

          9  workforce.  A focus effort to train the unemployed,

         10  would address current as well as future needs.

         11  During today's oversight hearing the Committees will

         12  explore recent data regarding joblessness in New

         13  York City, and seek information regarding what the

         14  Administration is doing to ensure that all New

         15  Yorkers in need receive benefits.  Together we will

         16  focus on New York City's workforce development

         17  system, and discuss methods to help reduce the

         18  continuing rise of unemployment.

         19                 Today, we will also hear testimony on

         20  three bills related to the issues of unemployment in

         21  New York City.                Resolution 276,

         22  proposes the creations of an emergency,

         23  transitional, job program targeted at increasing job

         24  opportunities and addressing structural

         25  unemployment.
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          2                 Resolution 275 will create

          3  apprenticeship and job opportunity programs for

          4  which unemployed New Yorkers can participate in

          5  upcoming, public infrastructure projects.

          6                 Resolution 198 asks the Council to

          7  convene an emergency summit to address the concerns

          8  highlighted in the recent community service society

          9  report entitled, "A Crisis in Black Male

         10  Employment," which addresses the need for employment

         11  services, training and educational programs.

         12                 Now, again, let me say this, that I

         13  am very pleased that some of the best minds of the

         14  City Council have joined with us today, and we are

         15  joining with some of the best minds of our

         16  community.  In this audience today, if we just

         17  turned it over to you, you could solve this problem.

         18    There is enough of you out there who have the

         19  skills, the leadership, the talent, and the

         20  abilities that if we just turned this situation

         21  right over to you at this moment, you could come up

         22  with a program to resolve this issue, and I

         23  encourage you to do so.  Your elected officials are

         24  here, they are willing to hear and work with you.

         25  So, seize this moment.
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          2                 I also have proposed in the Council

          3  that we put, at least, a million dollars for what is

          4  called severely distressed workers, workers who have

          5  been unemployed for a long time, workers that just

          6  cannot make their way in this society, and that we,

          7  as their neighbors, their brothers, their sisters,

          8  their children, and their parents must do something

          9  about.

         10                 I am pleased that I have been joined

         11  by Council Member Bill DeBlasio, who also is

         12  convening this hearing.  He is a man noted for hard

         13  work in this area, so, without further ado, Council

         14  Member DeBlasio, let me turn this to you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you, my

         16  fellow Chair. I very much appreciate your leadership

         17  on this issue.  And I think everyone in the Council

         18  has increasingly focused on this issue.  In a

         19  moment, I would like to turn to two of the folks, I

         20  think, helped sharpened the focus the most, Charles

         21  Barron and Larry Seabrook. But I just want to say

         22  briefly, on behalf of the General Welfare Committee,

         23  these are extremely important hearings, and I am

         24  glad that the Administration has sent a very

         25  appropriate witness and someone who really
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          2  understands how to get people to work.  And I have

          3  had the pleasure of working with him for many years.

          4                 The bottom line today is, we hold the

          5  solutions in our hands, and this is a question of

          6  will.  This is a question of political will, this is

          7  a question of turning the engine of government in

          8  the direction that it needs to be focused upon.  I

          9  think there is enough energy and insight both on the

         10  Administration side and the Council side to make a

         11  serious step forward.  And it is not like we are

         12  talking about unheard of or unutilized solutions, as

         13  I am sure you will hear in a moment from my two

         14  colleagues.  We are talking about things that work

         15  and are being done all over the country, and some

         16  measure here in New York City. It is doing them

         17  better, and doing them more frequently, let's get

         18  serious about the use of public funds; let's get

         19  serious about public investment being used as a tool

         20  to reach people in greatest need.

         21                 I had the pleasure, or displeasure,

         22  of working for the United States Department of

         23  Housing and Urban Development for several years, and

         24  one of the reasons that it was not always a pleasure

         25  was we dealt with the Federal Law Section 3, which
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          2  in its goals, in its rhetoric, suggested the noble

          3  idea of using public works and public investment to

          4  focus employment on communities in greatest need, to

          5  really create the conditions for apprenticeships and

          6  local hiring, and the way it should be done.  It

          7  makes so much sense, it is so straightforward.

          8                 But what happens year in and year

          9  out, is that noble, but toothless concepts like

         10  Section 3 do not get implemented.  And so we can see

         11  the promise land, but we never cross over to it.

         12  And I think what we want to do today with this

         13  hearing is raise the temperature,-- thank you, is

         14  that any better, hello, -- is raise the temperature

         15  on this issue, raise the focus, and really create a

         16  dynamic that forces action.  And you will today,

         17  hear some of the statistics, they are deeply

         18  troubling, they are riveting.  If we cannot figure

         19  out based on these statistics that this now needs to

         20  be the priority, I do not know what any of us is

         21  doing in public service.

         22                 So I would like to now turn over,

         23  first to Council Member Charles Barron, and then

         24  Council Member Larry Seabrook for their comments.

         25  And again, thank you both for having brought this
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          2  issue to the attention of the entire City, so

          3  firmly.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

          5  very much.  I want to thank Chair Sanders and Chair

          6  DeBlasio for rising to the occasion and seeing the

          7  importance of this kind of hearing, the importance

          8  of the energy and commitment that needs to be made

          9  to address this issue.

         10                 Everybody knows, and I am sure we all

         11  will believe this, if a study came out and said 48,

         12  nearly 50 percent of white males were unemployed,

         13  they would stop government, have an emergency

         14  meeting, and address it.  If a study came out and

         15  said 43 percent of white females were unemployed,

         16  they would stop government and address this issue.

         17  They would have never gone forward with the state of

         18  the State of Address, and not addressed this issue.

         19  As State of the City Address by the Mayor and the

         20  Speaker, a state of the State Address by the

         21  Governor, and not address this issue.  This is

         22  irresponsible government, it is racist, and we are

         23  here to say that we will not allow this to happen.

         24  This City will not rest until this issue is

         25  addressed.
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          2                 And I agree with my colleague,

          3  Council Member Larry Seabrook, who has given it

          4  energy and determination, we have solutions, and our

          5  solutions do not even call for any extra added

          6  revenue.  It is the repilotization (sic) of revenue

          7  within the context of the City Budget, within the

          8  context of the Lower Manhattan Development

          9  Corporation, money that is all ready going to

         10  allocated, the money is there.

         11                 And today, we have to get the

         12  political will of this City to do the right thing

         13  and address this serious issue.  This is how

         14  families are broken.  This is how crime escalates.

         15  This is how youth lose hope.  They are sitting here

         16  trying to give third graders a stressful, racist

         17  test, and even if they pass the test and do great in

         18  school, they do not even have a job for them when

         19  they finish.  So we have to make sure that this gets

         20  a serious address.

         21                 We are going to marching, we want

         22  everybody to come. Council Member Seabrook announced

         23  at the press conference, we want everybody listening

         24  here, watching on TV.  If you are part of the

         25  unemployed, you need to be at Ground Zero on the
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          2  26th of May, Ground Zero, and we are marching from

          3  Ground Zero to City Hall on the 26th of May, 11

          4  o'clock assembly, 12 o'clock march.  So we need

          5  everybody to be there.

          6                 This affects the whole New York

          7  family, because when one of us, all of us ought to

          8  be hurting.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

         11  very much, Chairman DeBlasio and Chairman Sanders

         12  for calling this hearing about this very serious

         13  matter.  And the responsibility of government is to

         14  be responsible, and our responsibility is to those

         15  who are need.  This is an emergency crisis when 51

         16  percent of anybody is not working, it is an

         17  emergency.

         18                 Fifteen years ago, 12 to 15 years

         19  ago, we declared that there was the endangered

         20  African- American male, and we had a responsibility

         21  to do what people do when there is an endangered

         22  species.  The government decided the endanger

         23  species so they put monies and they put time to

         24  protect that endanger species so that it will

         25  continue to live.  If we do not do what we are
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          2  supposed to do for this 51 percent that is

          3  unemployed, then we are actually allowing African-

          4  American youth to die in this City.  And I would

          5  hope that that is not the policy of a far- gone

          6  Administration that used benign neglect.

          7                 So our responsibility in this

          8  emergency crisis is to create an emergency

          9  transitional jobs program that would be targeted to

         10  increasing job opportunities and addressing

         11  structural unemployment and under- employment.  And

         12  one of the things that Council Member Barron has

         13  indicated that we do not need to reinvent, we need

         14  to reinvest, and we need to shift our priorities.

         15  And when there is a need with 51 percent, we need to

         16  be working with all factors and we will be talking

         17  to the Commissioners that we have educational

         18  opportunities centers in our communities now, and

         19  that those linkages should be in existence so that

         20  we can prepare people for those jobs, and the

         21  importance of giving them those skills and those

         22  opportunities.

         23                 Second, I think that when we talk

         24  about unemployment, and we have heard all of the

         25  people who have been elected from the President on
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          2  down, saying that unemployment is going down.  Well

          3  if unemployment is going down, then how did the

          4  community services society come up and say that 51

          5  percent of African- American males.  Are these

          6  statistics, the President, the Governor, and the

          7  Mayor, is only talking about white males, and

          8  excluding African- Americans totally?  So there is

          9  something systematically wrong.  And so we have a

         10  responsibility.

         11                 And so we are talking about the local

         12  development, Manhattan, Local Development

         13  Corporation, that is going spend billions of

         14  dollars.  They spent five billion dollars to clean

         15  up Ground Zero.  No bid contract, no African-

         16  Americans participating in any of the contracting.

         17  They told us, well we had to fast track it, we did

         18  not have time, and we could not find anyone.  Well

         19  it is high time that we looked around and saw that

         20  minority contractors and workers are in existence.

         21  And if we are talking about building and

         22  development, everybody has charted out a new stadium

         23  that they were to build stadiums all over the City

         24  in places that people have concerns about building.

         25                 But they are making a systematic
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          2  decision, and I want to close with this, there was a

          3  decision by government to build a place called

          4  Central Park, a governmental decision.  There was a

          5  governmental decision that said, when we build

          6  Central Park the commitment that they made to other

          7  workers, white workers in New York City was you

          8  cannot hire any black people to build Central Park.

          9  Not one black person was allowed to work to build

         10  Central Park.

         11                 Well I am here to tell you today that

         12  we are not going to tolerate none of our people

         13  working to rebuild and to build anything in this

         14  City ever again.  There will be no building, if we

         15  cannot help build this City.

         16                 And Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you

         17  so very much for allowing us that opportunity.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         19  Council Member Seabrook, and thank you, Council

         20  Member Barron.

         21                 I would like to welcome, acknowledge

         22  the other members of the Council who are here today.

         23    First of all, our Deputy Majority Leader, Bill

         24  Perkins.  We also have Council Member Tish James,

         25  Council Member Sara Gonzalez, Council Member
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          2  Annabell Palmar, Council Member Gale Brewer, Council

          3  Member Eric Gioia, Council Member Yvette Clarke,

          4  Council Member Chris Quinn, and Council Member Diana

          5  Reyna.

          6                 And I would also like to thank, a lot

          7  of hard work went into this hearing, and I would

          8  like to thank the staff of all three Committees who

          9  helped put this together, Beverly Reid, Christian

         10  Hylton, Danette Dargan, Sarah Seidman, and Jackie

         11  Sherman, thank you all for your hard work.

         12                 And now I would like to pass it back

         13  to my fellow Chair, James Sanders, Jr.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

         15  much, Council Member DeBlasio.  Before I go any

         16  further, let me turn it back to Council Member

         17  Perkins for a few words.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         19  very much.  First let me extend my appreciation to

         20  Council Member Barron and Seabrook, as well as the

         21  Chairs of the respective Committees that are

         22  conducting today's hearing on what clearly is a most

         23  critical issue for the people of the City of New

         24  York, especially for the black people of the City of

         25  New York.  But for the people of the City of New
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          2  York, in general, there is nothing that can be more

          3  important than what we are facing today, in terms of

          4  black unemployment.

          5                 Let me first say that with respect to

          6  Resos that are being discussed today, 198, 275, and

          7  276, I want to make sure that my name is added as a

          8  prime sponsor, and I respectfully express that the

          9  Chairs of the respective Committees make that

         10  happen.

         11                 It has been stated quite eloquently

         12  that there has been a white- collar recession.  For

         13  the black community, that is a depression, and for

         14  other communities of color, that is a depression.

         15  And there are those who might want to suggest that

         16  that high rate of unemployment is the result of some

         17  sort of laziness or lack of interest in employment.

         18  I think that the demonstration that Larry Seabrook

         19  is talking about on May 26th commemorating the

         20  Voting Rights Act will prove quite the opposite,

         21  because hundreds of thousands of men will be

         22  following his lead in demonstrating from the World

         23  Trade Center up to City Hall.

         24                 But the fact of the matter is that

         25  this crisis in black unemployment is reflective of a
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          2  crisis in public policy.  It is reflective of the

          3  fact that we have a national leader in Bush that has

          4  decided to give extraordinary tax cuts for the rich,

          5  invest extraordinary amounts of the public's tax

          6  dollars into a war that has no justification,

          7  hundreds of billions of dollars, both of which can

          8  be translated directly back into the shortcomings of

          9  what we are able to do here on the City Council

         10  level as far as funding for our schools, funding for

         11  employment and training opportunities.

         12                 So that we know that by the same

         13  token such negligence has been evident on the State

         14  level and clearly on the City level, as was

         15  articulated quite eloquently by my colleague,

         16  Charles Barron, in terms of the absence of the

         17  recognition of this problem in the State of the

         18  City's speeches and in the State of the State

         19  speeches.

         20                 But I think that this Council has a

         21  responsibility and has the courage and the

         22  wherewithal to make a difference, to make a

         23  significant difference by making sure that this is a

         24  priority for this Council as we go through this

         25  season of budget negotiations.  We do have the money
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          2  in the budget.  It is a question of whether or not

          3  we have the will, the political will in our heart.

          4  I think that this hearing begins to exemplify that

          5  we have that will, and I believe that the follow- up

          6  to that, in terms of the budget negotiations will

          7  translate into what should be meaningful change with

          8  respect to this problem.  Otherwise, we all are at

          9  fault, otherwise, not only are we at fault, but

         10  importantly, our City suffers because black high

         11  rates of unemployment affect all New Yorkers, and we

         12  cannot tolerate it.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you,

         15  Council Member Perkins.  Some homework, very

         16  quickly, or some house cleaning, if you wish, those

         17  who wish to speak, please sign up with the Sergeant-

         18  At- Arm, you have to sign up in advance, if you wish

         19  to speak here.

         20                 As Council Member Vann, who is one of

         21  the conveners of this hearing sent word that he has

         22  been detained, he is struggling to get here, and I

         23  am sure you will see him burst through these doors

         24  any second.  If he is out of breath, you can imagine

         25  how fast he was moving to get here.
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          2                 We are about to hear from the

          3  Commissioner of the Department of Business Services,

          4  and that, of course, is Commissioner Bob Walsh who

          5  has worked long and hard on this issue. I have gone

          6  to him to ask him to create a program for, to deal

          7  with severely distressed workers.  And I am looking

          8  forward to hearing this reflected in his comments.

          9                 Without further ado, Commissioner

         10  Walsh, welcome to this hearing.  Thank you for being

         11  here.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you very

         13  much for having me.  Good morning, Chairman Sanders,

         14  Chairman DeBlasio, members of the City Council.  I

         15  am Rob Walsh, I am the Commissioner of the

         16  Department of Small Business Services.  I appreciate

         17  the opportunity to share some of our agency's

         18  workforce development initiatives.

         19                 I am sorry, closer, how is that, is

         20  that better? Okay, and I am joined with our team

         21  from the Small Business Services Department, many of

         22  them experts in workforce Development and from time-

         23  to- time during the questions and conversations,

         24  please allow me to turn to some of these experts for

         25  further direction, and in some cases help.
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          2                 As you know it has been over 9 months

          3  since Mayor Bloomberg consolidated the adult

          4  programs of the Department of Employment with the

          5  Department of Small Business Services.  And I know

          6  this body was crucial in making this happen, the

          7  consolidation of the two agencies and working

          8  together.  This was a unprecedented step, which

          9  provided a critical length between economic

         10  development and workforce development.  And though

         11  we still have a long way to go the first nine months

         12  have yielded some significant gains, which I would

         13  like to share with you today.

         14                 We built a strong foundation for

         15  taking a proactive, forward thinking, demand driven

         16  approach to getting jobs for New Yorkers.  We

         17  understand that New York City is a City of

         18  neighborhoods, and we are committed to reaching out

         19  to as many people as possible, and it made sense to

         20  link what was the Department of Employment with the

         21  agency that oversaw Business Improvement Districts,

         22  Local Development Corporations, Empire Zones,

         23  Industrial Zones, Chamber of Commerce, and other

         24  community organizations that serve more than the

         25  200,000 small businesses in the City.  These strong
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          2  relationships are part of why putting these two

          3  agencies makes so much sense.  And we are going to

          4  build our workforce development programs to reflect

          5  the diversity and the breath of the City

          6  neighborhoods and the organizations that make up

          7  these neighborhoods.

          8                 We have three essential customers,

          9  job seekers, businesses, and community

         10  organizations.  And today I am going to talk about

         11  how they each fit into the one- stop system.  I am

         12  going to talk about our customize training programs,

         13  and the use of individual training accounts,

         14  otherwise known as vouchers, and how we could do a

         15  better job in using these vouchers.  We are putting

         16  our resources to train people, simply where the jobs

         17  are.  And in the past, quite frankly, we did not put

         18  enough attention into the places where the jobs are.

         19                 It all starts at the Workforce

         20  Centers, also known as One- Stops, which we direct

         21  along side our partners, the State Department of

         22  Labor, and now the City University of New York.  The

         23  One- Stops are our flagships, and if we are going to

         24  build on the foundation that we have laid in

         25  improving our One- Stops.  There are currently four
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          2  one- stop centers in our five boroughs.  The fifth

          3  is going to open in the Saint George neighborhood of

          4  Staten Island.

          5                 I was out there last week looking at

          6  a number of sites.  I was commenting to Council

          7  Member Seabrook and Council Member Barron before

          8  this testimony, that when we open a one- stop

          9  center, it has to be a professional center, and it

         10  has to look good, and it has to be inviting for all

         11  New York to come back to. And that is so, so

         12  important, in fact, I went out and looked at a

         13  number of the sites in Downtown Brooklyn when we

         14  were opening up. It was unacceptable some of the

         15  sites we were looking at.  We have just opened up on

         16  Bond Street right off Fulton Mall.  That is where

         17  the job growth is, that is where transportation is,

         18  and that is where it made sense.  Access to public

         19  transportation, a professional look, proximity to

         20  businesses large and small, were all ingredients to

         21  One- Stops.  And recently we selected the most

         22  respected and accomplished workforce, development

         23  providers in the City, to help us with the One-

         24  Stops.  You are familiar with the names, Wildcat

         25  Corporation, Seedco, Good Will Industries, CWE, and
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          2  soon to be the Arbor Foundation in Staten Island.

          3            And for the first time, we are requiring

          4  these vendors to devise outreach plans that focus on

          5  targeting areas of high unemployment.  We did not do

          6  that in the past.  And the other thing we are doing,

          7  is we are bringing in the contractors and having

          8  them share best practices.  What works in Upper

          9  Manhattan, and some of the techniques that we use in

         10  Upper Manhattan, can work in Downtown Brooklyn.  And

         11  it is important for us to share that information. We

         12  do it with the Local Development Corporations, we do

         13  it with the Business Improvement Districts, we can

         14  do it with these community organizations that have

         15  been around a long, long time and have made a

         16  significant difference.

         17                 What I want to do is site a couple of

         18  examples, and forgive me if I do not touch each of

         19  the Boroughs but I want to give you a flavor of how

         20  we are approaching workforce development and

         21  economic development.

         22                 And I am going to start in Upper

         23  Manhattan where Seedco has contracted to deliver

         24  services.  We have worked with Community Board #10

         25  to spread awareness of the One- Stops, and reached
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          2  out to over 100 community groups and faith- based

          3  organization, to introduce Seedco to the community.

          4  We cannot expect to open up shop and for people to

          5  come, we have got to get the word out.  And what we

          6  are going to do with the new contractors is have

          7  open houses throughout the boroughs.

          8                 And quite frankly, I am going to need

          9  your help in that area.  I am going to need your

         10  help, all of you, to get the word out about the One-

         11  Stops.  In fact, the other thought I had last night,

         12  while I was packing up going home, is, you know,

         13  perhaps we should get on a bus, the Council Members

         14  here, and go out to look at the different centers,

         15  and you tell me what is missing, what is the

         16  ingredients, you know, does it feel right, and how

         17  we can get the word out about these different

         18  places.

         19  In addition to these groups, and I am back on Upper

         20  Manhattan, we have joined forces with STRIVE, one of

         21  the most respected and successful workforce

         22  preparation programs in the country.  We realize

         23  that job readiness is a key component in many cases,

         24  that people are not ready for jobs, and resumes, and

         25  building resumes, and coming to work.  We have to
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          2  put more focus on working with groups like STRIVE.

          3  We have also approached the Harlem Hospital and the

          4  Northern Manhattan Improvement Corporation.  I

          5  recently sat down with Kenneth Knuckles of the Upper

          6  Manhattan Empowerment Zone to see how we can work

          7  together.  Doesn't it make sense to leverage our

          8  resources and bring them together?  If the

          9  Empowerment Zone is working on job training, and we

         10  are working on job training, and Columbia University

         11  wants to grow in Upper Manhattan, if we could put

         12  all the forces together, we are going to do it.  And

         13  speaking at Columbia University, we have reached out

         14  to Columbia University, now, and we said, what kind

         15  of jobs are you going to be developing, because we

         16  want to be part of it, and we want to make links to

         17  local residents for those jobs, before the land use

         18  decisions are made, before there is a shovel in the

         19  ground, we can end up having an impact, and that is

         20  the way to go.

         21                 Tomorrow, Bill Grinker of Seedco and

         22  I are meeting with Clyde Williams of the Harlem

         23  Small Business Initiative, a project that provides

         24  technical, professional, and managerial assistance

         25  to small businesses.  Booz Allen Hamilton, NYU
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          2  Stern, The National Association of Black MBAs, and

          3  the Greater Harlem Chamber of Commerce, all involved

          4  in this effort that Clyde Williams has been

          5  involved, and talk about our One- Stop and some of

          6  his initiatives.  He is aware of some of the

          7  programs we are doing, and looking at it together,

          8  of where the growth areas.

          9                 Each of these One- Stops should have

         10  a big map on the wall about where the job growth is

         11  taking place, and what some of the prospects are.

         12  And I am doing the same thing with our partners, the

         13  Economic Development Corporation, with the IDA

         14  Program.  If IDA is funding programs, we have to go

         15  beyond bricks and mortar, we have got to ask the

         16  question of how many jobs are being created, and how

         17  could we help in lining people up?  We have been

         18  doing it wrong.  We have been doing it wrong in

         19  terms of putting too much emphasis on intake, and

         20  not enough on those types of jobs.

         21                 Sara Gonzalez, you know the efforts

         22  going on in your area with Fairway and IKEA, and

         23  there, you know there is a lot of buzzed about some

         24  of the efforts that are taking place there.  We need

         25  to be doing the same thing, and we have all ready
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          2  begun the discussions with some of those prospects.

          3  If you want to build in the community, we want a

          4  game plan for jobs in the area.

          5                 I used the Upper Manhattan as an

          6  example to make a point that we are reaching out to

          7  neighborhood organizations, who know their

          8  constituencies better than we do.  We are using the

          9  One Stops as a hub for building relationships and

         10  branching out to communities.  And we are taking the

         11  same approach in Downtown Brooklyn, the Bronx,

         12  Jamaica, and soon, Staten Island.

         13                 I also realize that the One- Stops

         14  cannot do it alone.  A fully, built- out One- Stop

         15  cannot penetrate the entire Borough without help,

         16  there is simply too much geography.  We know this,

         17  and we know that the community partners will enhance

         18  our capacity, and that is why we are designing an

         19  affiliate program. And affiliated program to partner

         20  with community- based organizations, Council Member

         21  Seabrook, you mentioned the community- based

         22  organization, that is exactly what we have to do. I

         23  oversee the Local Development Corporations, I

         24  oversee the Business Improvement Districts, the

         25  Industrial Parks, the Empire Zones, it makes sense
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          2  to bring them into the fold on these things. To

          3  create more access points for One- Stops services,

          4  to equip us to better respond to the needs of

          5  specific communities.  We plan to issue an RFP by

          6  the end year for this purpose, so we have tentacles

          7  throughout the boroughs, not just relying on One-

          8  Stops.

          9                 We also need to create stronger

         10  relationships with businesses, and particularly

         11  those expanding or coming to the City. We are very

         12  proud of the model that was created with Council

         13  Member Brewer and the Mandarin Oriental Hotel at

         14  Columbus Center.  We placed 268 jobs of 400 that

         15  were brought to the City, 268 of the 400 that that

         16  hotel brought to the City.  How did we do it?  We

         17  did through outreach.  How did we do it?  We reached

         18  out to Council Member Brewer and we said, help us.

         19  You know this district, you know the people, you

         20  know the organizations, work with us to make it

         21  happen.

         22                 This is something that we can

         23  replicated, I am convinced on that.  This team that

         24  I have, and it is a new team, and it is an energized

         25  team, can make this happen in every Borough where we
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          2  are seeing hundreds of jobs created.

          3                 In Brooklyn, we have all ready

          4  started.  The One Stop that I alluded to at 9 Bond

          5  Street is preparing programs for two major projects,

          6  Steiner Studios and the Brooklyn Navy Yard, and the

          7  Atlantic Terminal Development right there in

          8  Downtown Brooklyn.            When Steiner Studios

          9  opens later in the year, expects to hire hundreds of

         10  workers for positions, ranging from film

         11  productions, stage mechanics, security, ground

         12  keepers, and food services.  As part of the local-

         13  hiring initiative to fill these jobs, we are going

         14  to establish an on- site presence.  Our agency is

         15  going to be there at the Brooklyn Navy Yard for job

         16  development, and we are going to work with the

         17  Brooklyn Navy Yard, Eric Duetch's (phonetic)

         18  organization there.  We will begin recruiting from

         19  the Farragut, Ingersoil, and Whitman Houses, and the

         20  surrounding community.  It makes perfect sense to

         21  start looking out for employees that live right next

         22  door, or in this case, out the front door of the

         23  Brooklyn Navy Yard.  Furthermore, we will work with

         24  Steiner to create career- ladders.  Career- ladders

         25  are so important, not just entry- level positions,
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          2  but career- ladder programs at Steiner.  And making

          3  sure that employees have the opportunity to advance

          4  beyond entry- level jobs.  Too many cases where we

          5  have seen where corporations move in, and they move

          6  into neighborhoods, and they limit employees other

          7  19 hours.  Why do they limit them to 19 hours?

          8  Because they do not want to pay the health

          9  insurance.  And we want to work to make sure that

         10  there are career- ladder programs in many of these

         11  places.

         12                 The development of the Atlantic

         13  Terminal also promises hundreds of full- time and

         14  part- time jobs, though many people think retail

         15  jobs lack access to upward mobility, we are teaming

         16  up with two organizations to promote career

         17  development. With the CUNY- led New York Sales and

         18  Service Training Partnership and the National Retail

         19  Federation, we will recruit for all positions,

         20  including entry- level management.  And I want to

         21  thank Council Member James for helping us target

         22  community- based organizations to help us administer

         23  the Retail Prep Program.

         24                 I realize that we have a long way to

         25  go in that area.  I realize that, you know, in this
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          2  neighborhood, the Fort Green neighborhood, and the

          3  Whitman Houses, which I have been out to, they have

          4  been promised things in the past.  I am going to

          5  ensure you that I am going to be out there, I am

          6  going to be walking the streets, I am going to link

          7  with the community organizations, I am going to work

          8  with the new Business Improvement District on Myrtle

          9  Avenue to make sure that we have these programs. And

         10  we can do that, not only at the One- Stop Center,

         11  but also through our affiliates and Business

         12  Improvement Districts, using the model that we used

         13  at Columbus Avenue.

         14                 In the South Bronx, another example,

         15  we are turning to the One- Stops in the South Bronx

         16  into a focal point for industry- based job creation.

         17    The relocation of the Fulton Fish Market will

         18  bring nearly 500 jobs to Hunts Point.  This

         19  strengthens the food industry in the Bronx.  We are

         20  working with the Hunts Point Economic Development

         21  Corporation, local businesses, and community

         22  organizations to connect local residents with new

         23  jobs. This collaboration will deliver work

         24  readiness, occupational skills, including food-

         25  making apprenticeships, commercial driver's license
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          2  training, computer and English literacy classes, and

          3  also, managerial workshops.

          4                 Again, these programs enable

          5  individuals to advance their careers and earn more

          6  money.  And we are working with these businesses

          7  that are committed to training their entry- level

          8  employees for advance rolls.  Advancement is key,

          9  dead end jobs are not going to work, and these

         10  programs have the potential to impact the income of

         11  hundreds of families.

         12                 We need to replicate this, as I

         13  mentioned, in every borough by identifying growth

         14  industries.  We can leverage the impact of

         15  Individual Training Account Vouchers, or better

         16  known as ITAs.  We spent over $44 million on ITAs

         17  last year.  ITAs enable people to link with jobs.  I

         18  realize that we have to do a better job in this

         19  area.

         20                 I was introducing Council Member

         21  Seabrook and Council Member Barron to the person who

         22  is leading this effort.  No pressure on Vicky

         23  Dawson, but she does know workforce development

         24  quite a bit, and this is an area that we can do a

         25  lot better.  We need to put controls, if a
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          2  vocational school, if a university, if a job

          3  training program is not linking people with jobs,

          4  and we have given them certificates, we should close

          5  them down, close it down with regard of sending

          6  vouchers that way.  We should reward those who are

          7  linking jobs and the people that we are sending with

          8  the training.  It makes sense.  And for the first

          9  time we are putting performance measures together,

         10  and I making these public, I am analyzing, I am

         11  taking a look at where vouchers are going, how they

         12  are going, where they are going, what boroughs are

         13  they going to, and how better can we use them.

         14                 I refuse to believe that these

         15  vouchers should be dispersed without controls to

         16  track their success rate.  It is good for all of us,

         17  if we use them and leverage them well.

         18                 At the end of the day, if ITAs do not

         19  lead to jobs, it is the individual who gets cheated.

         20    By connecting ITAs to strong industries and strong

         21  schools, we can make a difference.  I think I have

         22  pounded away at that quite a bit.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

         24  much, Commissioner.  Council Member DeBlasio, would

         25  you be kind enough?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

          3  Chair Sanders. Very briefly, Commissioner, I

          4  appreciate your testimony very much, and I

          5  appreciate, first and foremost, because I have known

          6  you for 20 years, and I have known you to have

          7  tremendous integrity in the way you do your work.  I

          8  appreciate something you said in your testimony,

          9  especially, "we have been doing it wrong."  That is

         10  what shows to me the mark of integrity, when someone

         11  can say, and I do not think you were specifically

         12  saying any one thing when you said that, you were

         13  saying, we, as a City, all of us, have not entirely

         14  come to grips with this.  And I admire any one who

         15  can say that and not sugar coat and say, we all have

         16  to work harder to do it better.

         17                 And I also appreciate that you say

         18  something, which I wish more people in government

         19  would say, which is, we have to push the private

         20  sector in terms of their commitments to create jobs.

         21    And obviously, to create them more locally,

         22  because that is truly the dynamic.  You know the

         23  jobs are going to be created, are they going to be

         24  the right kind of jobs, and are they going to get to

         25  the people who need them most.  And I appreciate
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          2  that you are prioritizing that.  And also, your

          3  willingness to say that if something is not working,

          4  we should not go down that road.

          5                 I want to note that it is our

          6  responsibility to, I think you opened in the right

          7  spirit, and we, on the Council, everyone of us, both

          8  in terms of our districts and as legislators and

          9  budget makers have to take full personal

         10  responsibility for this crisis as well.  You

         11  mentioned Gale Brewer and Tish James, I think they

         12  both are exceptional examples of --

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  And I get

         14  troubled when I single people out like that, because

         15  I think I have walked with practically, most people

         16  in this - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  No, you chose

         18  two fine examples, and the specific accomplishments.

         19    And by the way, if you had not, Gale Brewer would

         20  have told us.  Because what she did with the Orient,

         21  what is it, Mandarin Oriental was really

         22  outstanding.

         23                 I want to ask you about this,

         24  something both Council Member Barron and Council

         25  Member Seabrook have raised, the problems with
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          2  Section 3, and I want to broaden the question to

          3  you, to look at the question of governments' ability

          4  to focus hiring, where government funds the hiring,

          5  or supports the hiring with any type of subsidy or

          6  other support?  And I could even broaden that to

          7  say, when we do a rezoning by the way, as we did

          8  recently on Fourth Avenue in Brooklyn, we provided

          9  tremendous economic benefit to those who come in and

         10  develop.  So there are a lot ways you can interpret

         11  governments value added to the Economic Development

         12  process.  How then do we broker that or leverage

         13  that into guarantees, firm, legal guarantees that

         14  local residents will be hired, and that there will

         15  be special residents that have difficulty finding

         16  regular employment?

         17                 And I noted in the beginning, Section

         18  3 is powerless, or toothless in many ways.  And I do

         19  not even think we have, and correct me if I am

         20  wrong, something roughly equivalent to Section 3 on

         21  the State and City or City level that even sets the

         22  goal so clearly.  So can you speak to what we could

         23  do more structurally to change the way we do

         24  business, and to use the power of government

         25  investment?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I think there is

          3  a couple of things when you talk about local hiring.

          4    And I think there is also some dangers, you know,

          5  quite frankly of setting, you know, whether it is a

          6  third, a half, 75 percent just locally.

          7                 I think the Mandarin Oriental Hotel

          8  is an example of that.  Not all of those are local

          9  hires, we made a special emphasis, we made it clear

         10  about the opportunities, but they are not all on the

         11  Upper West Side.  You know, those 268 employees, and

         12  I think that you have got to be careful of not

         13  tipping it too much, where you are saying 40 percent

         14  of the people are going to be hired from

         15  Williamsburg.  And I think that is something we need

         16  to be very careful about.

         17                 But at that the same time, one of the

         18  things that I have been thinking a lot about, and

         19  looking at best practices, what we have not done, is

         20  we have not used workforce development money, and

         21  monies like Empire Zones, as an incentive to bring

         22  businesses for customized training.  Businesses

         23  large and small are shocked, that even before they

         24  are in the ground they are getting a knock on the

         25  door from us, asking how many jobs do you have, what
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          2  skills do you have, and where could we be of help in

          3  that area.  And often their response, you know, is,

          4  you know the agency is looking to place the lowest

          5  skilled workers in the area.

          6                 What is surprising to me, and I have

          7  been in this job with the new employment for nine

          8  months, it has really been six month, you work out

          9  all the apparatus that needs to take place, and

         10  personnel and budget, is that the people who are

         11  coming to our One Stops, 30 percent less than high

         12  school diploma, 35 percent high school diploma, 35

         13  percent some college or more.  So they are serving

         14  much more, and what we have not done well is getting

         15  the word out to the businesses that we have this

         16  tool.  We have not done well about using technology

         17  and getting things out.

         18                 And you know, I speak to a lot of

         19  small businesses and I ask questions of, why are you

         20  not using the One- Stops?  They do not know about

         21  it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Well let me

         23  redirect you back though, to the question of

         24  whether, I appreciate the answer, but I want to get

         25  it back to sort of structural issues.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  It still seems

          4  to me that we are leaving money on the table that we

          5  are giving all these benefits of one form or another

          6  to developers, to private entities, again, whether

          7  it is a rezoning, whether it is simply a government

          8  contract, whatever it may be, or we are building a

          9  public building, or we are subsidizing the creation

         10  of a building.  What I am asking is, - -

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Well we may

         12  have, and what I am saying is that I have been

         13  talking to Andy Alper in EDC, when deals are made at

         14  the IDA, or when land use issues are talked about,

         15  we are getting our foot in the door now.  Now to do

         16  that Ironclad and say that that must be, it must

         17  happen this way, I do not know how much, I do not

         18  know, quite frankly, if that will hold up, I don't

         19  know.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Here let me

         21  challenge you on this, and I will use Section 3 as

         22  an example.  So Section 3 says, you are spending

         23  federal money, and I will use the HUD example,

         24  because it is a very simple one, local- hiring

         25  preferences should be there.  So all this work has
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          2  been done in public housing all over America since

          3  Section 3 was put into law.  And much of the work,

          4  directly federally funded, all sorts of rehab and

          5  building, and rebuilding.  And what has happened

          6  consistently is the labor who comes into to do the

          7  work, comes from outside the area.  And so, you

          8  know, there have been models, like apprenticeship

          9  programs, there have been all sorts of models that

         10  could be used to change that.  And here is a federal

         11  law saying, you are using public federal money, you

         12  should be doing that, but it does not happen because

         13  there is no enforcement mechanism.

         14                 So what I am saying, I do not doubt

         15  your good will and the Administration's good will, I

         16  am trying to get the most out of each deal, what I

         17  am saying is, can we leave it to that kind of case

         18  by case dynamic, is that enough.  Don't we need

         19  something structural that it says, that it is the

         20  law, that once you do a certain amount of public

         21  investment, there must be a substantial amount of

         22  local hiring to benefit the surrounding community.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Right.  I

         24  mentioned when I opened up that I have workforce

         25  experts with me here.  I want to see if anyone wants
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          2  to take a shot at, David, Maria, on this end. They

          3  are going to leave me up here by myself.  They are

          4  very small input.

          5                 I mean, I would love to talk to you

          6  about this. Look, I am looking at this, this is

          7  something that we should sit down and talk about.

          8  But what I often thing about, if you end up saying

          9  that it should be 35 or 40 percent, I will use

         10  Williamsburg, because Williamsburg is the closest

         11  example, and you cannot get that service in that

         12  area or that community, what happens then?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Well I want to

         14  end on this point, and I think this is equally true

         15  of the purchasing power of government beyond the

         16  question of development.  I think it is true in

         17  where we purchase our supplies, and everything we do

         18   - -

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I am with you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And by the

         21  way, I worked on the Empowerment Zone in Upper

         22  Manhattan and in the South Bronx, it always struck

         23  me how much government was not using its purchasing

         24  power and contracting power to facilitate the

         25  Empowerment Zone.  So it was like one part of
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          2  government policy was doing X, and the other was

          3  doing Y.  But all I would say to you is, you know, I

          4  do not think it is unreasonable at all for you to

          5  say the reality of the private sector economy, is

          6  that we cannot always achieve the percentages we

          7  like.  I think that is an honest answer.

          8                 So why don't we find a percentage

          9  that we think does hold water.  If it is 25 percent,

         10  if it is 20 percent, whatever it is, why don't we

         11  start with a law or a guide line that says the

         12  minimum is this very realistic, very attainable

         13  level, that everyone, when they do a development in

         14  New York City, when they get a City contract,

         15  everyone should meet this baseline.  And again,

         16  Section 3 implies the same.  It does not have to do

         17  anything with it.  So can we get to a point in City

         18  policy, this is the baseline, once you show up and

         19  accept a public benefit, this is the baseline, and

         20  then we will try and do more beyond that in each

         21  case.  But without such a firm goal are we ever

         22  going to really get anywhere.

         23  COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Counsel, just came up, you

         24  know, someone had courage to try to get me off the

         25  hook on this one, and one of the things that he
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          2  whispered in my ear, is we have been struck down in

          3  the past on set asides, as we know with the M/WBE

          4  Program.  You know the commitment that Chairman

          5  Sanders has made in that program. But I would be

          6  happy to talk about and sit down.  I do not want to

          7  cop out, I want to look at it.

          8                 I also want to look at, if models

          9  like this have worked in other places.  New York

         10  could learn from other places, -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Right.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: - -  that do it

         13  better.  I was up in Boston looking at their One-

         14  Stop Centers last week, they do a better job than we

         15  do.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Well let me

         17  just say, I appreciate your honesty of your

         18  response.  I will pass it back to the my fellow

         19  Chair.  I would just say this to you, I always use

         20  the Marshall Plan Analogy, when a government decides

         21  to marshall its resources and put its resource

         22  together and say, as they did, as the federal

         23  government did with the Marshall Plan in Europe

         24  after the war, they say we are going to do this no

         25  matter what, it is amazing how much gets done.
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          2                 I will give a tip of the cap to this

          3  Mayor, it certainly has shown that when he puts his

          4  mind to something, he can move a lot of pieces.  So

          5  I would simply say, there has got to be a way to

          6  crack the code and find a way to create some minimum

          7  and powerful standards that any time public money is

          8  spent, there is a local benefit, and that inevitably

          9  and positively affect the African- American men in

         10  particular, and to find a way to target it just that

         11  plainly.

         12                 And I urge you to pull together

         13  everybody in the Administration, and work for that

         14  goal.

         15                 Thank you, my fellow Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you,

         17  thank you.  We have been joined by Council Member

         18  Serrano, and of course, we have been joined by the

         19  near legendary Council Member Albert Vann, who I am

         20  sure has broken just about every law known to man to

         21  get here.  I just ask that Officer to distract that

         22  from the record that I just said that, and do not

         23  pull Council Member Vann out of here.  But we are

         24  glad to see you here, Sir.

         25                 Council Member Vann, one of the
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          2  conveners of this meeting.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yes, thank you

          4  to both Chairpersons, and if you would give me a

          5  moment, and I apologize for arriving a little late,

          6  but I was at a public hearing around corner, we are

          7  testifying against the Department of Homeless

          8  Services, who within three weeks now are in the

          9  process of taking, or not renewing contracts with

         10  black community organizations that running, in one

         11  program SRO, in another the Homeless Shelter for

         12  Women in my district.  So that they want to put some

         13  more black men out of work to add to that 50 percent

         14  that we know about as a result of the CSS studies.

         15                 Before I came to the City Council, as

         16  you know, I was in the Assembly for a long time, and

         17  I was there when we authorized, I think it is

         18  Article 16A, which established in front of an action

         19  program in the State of New York.  Basically, what

         20  it does is it establishes goals, both for the State

         21  agencies and for public authorities and so forth.

         22  What that did, it provides another arsenal, that

         23  weapon in your arsenal to use to try to force, if

         24  you will, those city, state agencies in that case,

         25  and corporate authorities to measure up and to give

                                                            48

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  some of those contracts to other than white men,

          3  blacks, women, Hispanics, and so forth.  So without

          4  that kind of leverage, you know, it is very

          5  difficult because what I know after almost 30 years

          6  in service that government can do whatever it wants

          7  to do.  It has the power to do that, it is a matter

          8  of what are its priorities, understand, what its

          9  priorities are, then they will interpret the

         10  legislation, they will go around it, they will set

         11  up a demonstration, they will ignore it, know

         12  government will do what it wants to do, whatever

         13  they decide in its best interest.

         14                 And what we know is that people of

         15  color is not the best interest of most governmental

         16  operation, based on what I just went through a few

         17  minutes ago, and again, three weeks ago.

         18                 I was around when David Dinkins

         19  through Executive Order established an affirmative

         20  action program, and so people of color got

         21  procurement contracts.  When Giuliani came in, the

         22  first thing he did, the first thing that he did as

         23  Mayor, was to eliminate that program, and then black

         24  and Latino's and poor people did not get any more

         25  work, they did not get any more contracts.
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          2                 Well, there is a new sheriff in town,

          3  right?  Happen to be white, happen to be a man,

          4  happen to be rich, happen to be a republican, but I

          5  will not hold that against them, initially.  He is a

          6  Mayor, he will rise to the occasion, Mayor for all

          7  the people, right?  That is what you do when you are

          8  Mayor, all the people, you know, all the people,

          9  blacks, white, Latino, everybody.  And so we were

         10  waiting for something to show that you have risen to

         11  the occasion, that your agencies, and your

         12  Commissioners will respond and do the right thing,

         13  and make sure that black men work, and that Latino

         14  women work, and that Asian people work, that

         15  everybody gets a piece of this action here.

         16                 And so what is necessary, I mean, all

         17  this testimony is very important, it highlights it,

         18  and I am very pleased that Commissioner Walsh is

         19  here, and he will explain, you know, what he is

         20  trying to do, and all of this is very helpful.  But

         21  understand this, that this Mayor will do and can do

         22  whatever he wants to do to correct the injustice in

         23  this procurement system.  All right, it can be done.

         24                 So, you know, there is nothing to

         25  prevent that from occurring, you are the power.
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          2  When you are the power, you make things happen.  If

          3  you have influence and you want to get to somebody

          4  who has the power.  So who does the Mayor go to, who

          5  do our Commissioners go to, they are the ones.  And

          6  they are the ones to hold accountable for making

          7  sure that the policies in this City reflect the

          8  needs of the people of the City, majority of the

          9  people of the City.  It is shameful, it is shameful

         10  that more than 50 percent of black men who are

         11  employable cannot get a job in this City.  So it is

         12  shameful that the study done by Black In Government

         13  shows a major disparity in the number of black and

         14  people of color who are not working within the

         15  Administration.

         16                 And this is why we are here to

         17  address that and let the powers that be to know of

         18  which we are part of, that we intend for this

         19  government to establish a priority for its citizens.

         20    You know, we too, are America, we too, are New

         21  Yorkers, respond to us, set up the policies, and

         22  allocate the money so that we can feel that we are

         23  part of this City.  So that more people will want to

         24  vote, then more people will want to register, more

         25  people will want to participate.
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          2                 Have you observed that more people

          3  are not voting in elections in America?  There is a

          4  reason for that.  Have you observed that people are

          5  not registering to vote at the level they should be?

          6    There is a reason for that.  It is not an

          7  epiphany, this is something that has been happening

          8  over time, when they see injustice, after injustice,

          9  after injustice, and it is time that we put a stop

         10  to it, and hopefully, this is a beginning of a

         11  movement, of a reality, that we will begin to

         12  address these problems.

         13                 Thank you for the opportunity.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you,

         15  Council Member Vann.  We are up to questioning,

         16  questions from the Council members.  Observe the two

         17  quick questions that I am going to give, notice how

         18  brief they are, and I encourage you to do similar my

         19  fellow Council members.

         20                 Commissioner, I am still fearing that

         21  we are going to miss the mark, even though these are

         22  very worthy things that you have described, I am

         23  fearing it sounds, well, I know it is not more of

         24  the above, I know that it is not more of the same,

         25  but I am just worried that even with these things,
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          2  we are going to miss the mark.

          3                 I had to find some stuff for severely

          4  distressed workers, and of course that is black men,

          5  black women, Latinos, Asian, white men, white women,

          6  anyone who is severely distressed and left out.  And

          7  these things that I have described in working with

          8  you are the targets, the five worst hit areas in New

          9  York City, focusing directly where the problem is,

         10  the five worst.  My area may not be, I am sure if we

         11  said six, it would be, but it may not be in the five

         12  worst areas.  But this has to include

         13  entrepreneurial opportunities also, and not just

         14  trap us into being waiting for someone else to hire

         15  us.

         16                 I wanted to put that out, but I also

         17  want you to reflect on,  there are mega projects

         18  coming to New York City. Projects that we should not

         19  tackle a piece at a time.  Hoping that this

         20  neighborhood will get a few jobs here, we need to

         21  speak of community partnership agreements.

         22  Agreements that these mega projects can come and

         23  shape with communities, and it seems to be that your

         24  agency would be best suited to help shape those

         25  things. Would you be kind enough to comment on both
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          2  of these?

          3                 I understand that we are still

          4  working on the first one that I spoke of, but would

          5  you be kind enough to comment on both of these

          6  things?

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I certainly

          8  would, and I would be happy to that.  I just go back

          9  to, I do not under estimate the impact we could have

         10  by teaming up with organizations like Seedco and

         11  Wildcat, and asking organizations like that to turn

         12  every stone, Borough by Borough, zip code by zip

         13  code, block by block, and that is where the

         14  concentration of unemployment is.  This is something

         15  we did not do in the past.  Okay, and quite frankly,

         16  this is, you know, I saw one of the presentations,

         17  was it Good Will that has done pieces of Brooklyn,

         18  and showed me the concentration of high unemployment

         19  in the area.  You know, they have been on the job

         20  for a couple of weeks now in doing this, but they

         21  have all ready gone out and looked at these areas.

         22  And then the question is, what can we do, and where

         23  is some of the job growth taking place, and what is

         24  some of the local development corporations, who are

         25  the community- based organizations, you know, to
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          2  make that happen with us.

          3                 Government is not going to do it

          4  alone, and quite frankly, some small businesses

          5  would never turn to government, when they are

          6  filling jobs, I realize that.  I ran a Local

          7  Development Corporation, I ran a Business

          8  Improvement District.  I probably, when I was up at

          9  14th Street and Union Square, would not have turned

         10  to government to help me out.  You know the

         11  attachment simply was not there.  I knew best in

         12  that particular neighborhood. And that is something

         13  that we have to do better.

         14                 We have a commercial revitalization

         15  program together, the Council and this organization,

         16  we fund Local Development Corporations, we fund

         17  Business Improvement Districts, we could get a lot

         18  more out of these organizations, if we make it a key

         19  piece of economic development.  So rather than doing

         20  a marketing brochure or banners on the street, or

         21  some other program focus on jobs.

         22                 In Councilman Vann's District, I have

         23  been working, you know, hand- in- hand with Calvin

         24  Granum (phonetic) at the Bed- Sty Restoration.  I

         25  want to go to Calvin and say to him, we have this
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          2  affiliate program, we are going to offer this up, we

          3  have an RFP program, challenge Calvin to put

          4  together a dynamic, creative, entrepreneurial

          5  program to help lift, you know, some of the efforts

          6  you have made on Fulton Street, and make it better,

          7  and fill up some of those empty store fronts.

          8                 On the entrepreneurial areas, I got

          9  one of the very best, Chairman, in Fred Hook.  Fred

         10  Hook has a small little program that a lot of people

         11  do not know about.  How many people did you train

         12  last year?  Two thousand, seven hundred people in

         13  locations like Chinatown, in Flatbush, in Upper

         14  Manhattan.  And Jamaica, in the Jamaica One- Stops.

         15  We can take this micro enterprise program and

         16  develop it, you know, a lot better.

         17                 In Council Member Clarke's District,

         18  we have a market.  The market could be a lot better,

         19  we know that.  What we need to do in that market is

         20  to get some of those people in the market out into

         21  storefronts.  The ones that are a great success, we

         22  need to get them out into the storefronts.  I have

         23  some ideas on that, I have some ideas, you know,

         24  where it has been done in other places.  We like to

         25  throw around words like incubator.  But if you know,
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          2  if you do not put the resources into programs like

          3  incubators, they are simply not going to work.

          4                 We could move, and if I could use the

          5  example at Flatbush Caytin (phonetic) as an example,

          6  some of the talented people in Flatbush Caytin, we

          7  should be going to talk to HPD about some of the

          8  store front improvement programs they have, and move

          9  some of those businesses out into an area where they

         10  can make it on their own, and these small businesses

         11  can become larger businesses. This is something that

         12  the whole of New York has not done well. And if this

         13  is the direction we can move together, let's do it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

         15  much, Commissioner.  Council Member James.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman.  It is interesting after all the men have

         18  spoken, you asked that the women be short.  I just

         19  wanted to, again, just wanted to talk about the fact

         20  that the black community has made much progress, but

         21  we have got a lot of progress to be made as a

         22  result, which is reflected in the number.  And we

         23  should declare a State of Emergency in the City of

         24  New York as a result of the high unemployment rate

         25  within the black community.  Fifty- one percent of
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          2  black men and forty- three percent of black women,

          3  truly is a State of Emergency.

          4                 And so, Commissioner, we have to go

          5  forward with a bold agenda and a determined

          6  commitment to addressing this crisis. And so as

          7  opposed to a number of questions, I want to make

          8  some points, and at the end ask you some specific

          9  questions.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I would like

         12  for you to, again, look at possibly, and I will be

         13  drafting legislation to provide that there will be

         14  some sort of subsidy accountability to all the

         15  developers and/or individuals who get subsidies in

         16  the City of New York, that they make a, that they

         17  not make a commitment that they have to employ,

         18  particularly within distressed communities where

         19  there is high rates of unemployment.

         20                 I want to talk, perhaps you should

         21  begin a discussion with some of the construction

         22  trades with regards to establishing apprenticeship

         23  programs.  We have to, again, open up the doors to

         24  all of these construction trades to address this

         25  high rate of unemployment.  As you know, in Downtown
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          2  Brooklyn, I am looking at a significant amount of

          3  development, and I look at some of the development

          4  that is currently going on, and the vast majority of

          5  the individuals who are employed within my district

          6  and in Downtown Brooklyn do not come, who are

          7  working on the construction sites, do not come from

          8  Brooklyn and/or from the City of New York.  And we,

          9  again, need to engage in a bold dialogue with the

         10  Construction Trade Unions with regards to

         11  establishing apprenticeship programs and project

         12  labor agreements.

         13                 The Mayor needs to, again, enact an

         14  Executive Order on W/MBEs (sic) and Affirmative

         15  Action.  I recognize that the City of New York,

         16  which is amazing to me, that we do not have an

         17  Affirmative Action Policy.  We are in the process

         18  of, again, doing a disparity study, but there is

         19  nothing stopping us from doing one voluntarily, and

         20  that every contract that the City of New York

         21  executes with regards to, from widgets to

         22  construction that we establish W/MBEs (sic) and

         23  Affirmative Action, and that we not do targets and

         24  quotas, which I recognize is illegal.  But that we

         25  do some numerical numbers, goals, thank you, and
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          2  time tables.

          3                 I know we need to, again, provide tax

          4  incentives to manufacturing and industrial

          5  construction industries.  I recognize that a vast

          6  majority of the individuals in Ingersoll, Whitman,

          7  Farragut, Atlantic Terminal, Ebberts Field, will not

          8  be employed in the fire industries, finance,

          9  insurance, real estate.  And I recognize that as

         10  manufacturing and industrial jobs go out of the

         11  country, we need to provide tax incentives to create

         12  more manufacturing and industrial jobs.  They are

         13  leaving our city in rapid numbers, and we really

         14  need to invest boldly in manufacturing and

         15  industrial type of opportunities.

         16                 And my other point is, again, the

         17  Governor of the State of New York has used TANF and

         18  WIA money for deficit reduction.  And TANF and WIA

         19  needs to be used for its intended purpose to address

         20  the high rates of unemployment in communities of

         21  color.  And there has to be a dialogue with this

         22  Governor, we cannot use TANF and WIA money to

         23  provide tax rebates and tax cuts to the powers that

         24  be.  They have to be used for targeted communities.

         25                 But my question for you,
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          2  Commissioner, and you know I really appreciate all

          3  that you have done in Downtown Brooklyn, we have

          4  gone on a number of the tours, and we are doing some

          5  workforce development in Brooklyn as we face this

          6  unprecedented development.

          7                 How much funding will be set- aside

          8  for the One- Stop system?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Sixteen million.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And how many

         11  affiliates under programs can be created with this

         12  funding?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Affiliates, it

         14  is unclear right now in terms of how many

         15  affiliates.  I think it is going to be based on

         16  Borough and needs based on the unemployment data

         17  that we collect from the contractors.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And how many

         19  affiliates will be needed to ensure the sufficient

         20  access?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I think it

         22  depends, again, it depends Borough by Borough and

         23  the size of the different organizations, Local

         24  Development Corporations, the Empire Zones, it

         25  depends on how much geography some of these
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          2  organizations can cover.

          3                 I am getting a note passed to me.  We

          4  will have money set aside for these.  Yes, and how

          5  much money are we talking about?  We do not know

          6  yet, okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Feel free to

          8  come and sit by, there is a seat there, if you wish.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Maria Buff once

         10  told me, I was kidding her saying I wanted to go

         11  with a conference with her and maybe I would take

         12  her seat.  And she said, Commissioner, you can sit

         13  behind me, and now you can understand why.

         14                 This is something that we still have

         15  to work out.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  The good news is

         18  because we have made gains with our One- Stops and

         19  putting in apparatus and in structuring and

         20  recruiting such good people together, the State is

         21  starting to funnel supplemental money our way, to

         22  the point where we have been able to restore some of

         23  the, you know, organizations that we cut early on.

         24  Every one, I probably got a letter from everybody,

         25  you know, up on the dais on this issue.  And we have
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          2  been able to put money back into many of those

          3  organizations.

          4                 But the good news is that we are

          5  being recognized in that way, and I think we are

          6  developing, I know we are developing a better

          7  relationship with the State in those areas.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And how many

          9  training vouchers will be available next year, any

         10  idea?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Probably you are

         12  talking about in the range of $10 million, is that a

         13  guess, a good guess in terms of?  Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And how much

         15  training will a voucher purchase?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Vouchers are

         17  capped at about $2,500 a voucher.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And what is

         19  the total amount of money available for training?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  For the ITAs in

         21  particular?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.  Or just

         23  in general within your agency.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Eighteen million

         25  dollars.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay.  And the

          3  last point is, have you ever thought about, in Fort

          4  Green as you know, - -

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I do know.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: - -  Fort Green

          7  Park separates the haves versus the have- nots.  I

          8  have million dollar brownstones on one side, and

          9  then I have 70 percent unemployment. We talk about

         10  51 percent of black males, but in Ingersoll,

         11  Whitman, and Farragut, which is one of the largest

         12  public developments in the City of New York, we are

         13  looking at 70 percent unemployment right across the

         14  street from unprecedented development.  MetroTech,

         15  which made a significant number of promises to the

         16  residents of Ingersoll, Whitman, and when they built

         17  it, it was 70 percent unemployment, it is still 70

         18  percent unemployment to this day, which is a

         19  travesty.

         20                 The question that I have is, what is

         21  the possibility of creating instead of an

         22  Empowerment Zone, an Economic Development Zone,

         23  which is a much larger zone, a distressed zone,

         24  specifically targeted, a narrow zone, Ingersoll,

         25  Whitman, and Farragut, where there is high rate of
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          2  unemployment, particularly in communities where the

          3  unemployment exceeds 50 percent?  We need to declare

          4  a State of Emergency, a City State of Emergency and

          5  it needs to be targeted specifically in communities

          6  such as I have in my district, where there is 70

          7  percent unemployment.  Emergency services targeted,

          8  coordinated, workforce development, capacity

          9  building, tied to all of the development in Downtown

         10  Brooklyn, we need a plan of action, a Marshall plan.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  All right, thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

         15  much, Council Member James.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Can I - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Do you want to

         18  respond?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Yes, I do want

         20  to respond in a couple of pieces on this.  One is on

         21  the apprentice program, and one of the things that

         22  we did last year for the very, very first time,

         23  Reggie Grayson (phonetic), our Assistant

         24  Commissioner who heads up our M/WBE programs, he is

         25  the one who deserves credit for it.  I will take

                                                            65

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  credit for him, since he is not here.  But he

          3  partnered with Turner Construction.

          4                 For the very first time, everyone

          5  knows it is one the world's largest construction

          6  firms.  And what we did was, we enrolled City

          7  certified M/WBEs in a training program.  It was a

          8  very intensive training program.  We had over 185

          9  participants in the fall of 2003.  I do not have the

         10  numbers in terms of how many subcontracts that they

         11  awarded, but they went above and beyond with some of

         12  these programs.

         13                 And the fact that we worked with a

         14  gentleman by the name of Hilton Smith, you may have

         15  come across Hilton.  If we could replicate what

         16  Turner Construction has done, with some of the other

         17  large contractors, we could make a world of a

         18  difference.  And I want to do this again.  I am

         19  unhappy with 183, and I told Reggie, he said that

         20  the second largest program of its kind in my very

         21  first year in doing this.  It simply is not enough

         22  for New York City.  We are not good about accepting

         23  second place in anything. And if we could take the

         24  Turner program, we could develop the Turner program,

         25  and we can get other organizations to do the same,
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          2  let's do it.

          3                 On M/WBE, the Mayor issued an

          4  Executive Order on M/WBE and it is beyond just

          5  fluff.  We had three people in the M/WBE Unit when I

          6  first started, three people.  What I did was I

          7  linked M/WBE and procurement.  We have made some

          8  headway with some of the smaller contracts through a

          9  five by five program.  What that simply means is

         10  when a procurement officer at one of the City's

         11  agencies has to purchase, they now need to link with

         12  the five M/WBEs.  They have to take a look.  We have

         13  created a state- of- the art M/WBE database.

         14                 I am tired of the excuse that

         15  procurement officers, we made it too cumbersome for

         16  them.  We made it really easy, it is a One- Stop.

         17  And I have gone from agency to agency to talk about

         18  the M/WBE program and what we are doing.  In fact,

         19  Saturday I am going to be at Medgar Evers talking

         20  more about that.  We have opened up the dialogue,

         21  thanks to Chairman Sanders, on the diversity study.

         22  Being very open about things we have done well, and

         23  some things that we can improve.  And there are many

         24  other steps that we have taken out of area.  Can we

         25  do better?  Yes, we can do better with a lot more
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          2  resources in the area, but I think we are making a

          3  good deal of, you know, headway in those areas.

          4                 With regard to the Housing Authority,

          5  and what we can do in the Housing Authority, I have

          6  sat down with Tino Hernandez and his top senior

          7  management staff, because we were talking about

          8  Upper Manhattan, we were talking about the Columbia

          9  University programs.  Councilman Perkins, you

         10  probably could help me out, I want to make sure that

         11  I get the houses right, it is Grant House and

         12  Manhattanville, the two houses, in saying, what are

         13  we going to do, how are we going to link with those.

         14    And the Housing Authority, for the first time, I

         15  think in a long time, is understanding something

         16  that Bill DeBlasio would know well from HUD, is you

         17  cannot build housing to the sky and expect them to

         18  work and hand over keys to people.  The Housing

         19  Authority is now building computer training and they

         20  are now putting a lot more emphasis on job training.

         21                 I have got to get a better idea of

         22  what is available at public housing, focus on the

         23  job readiness, and then we can end up moving in and

         24  leveraging and using some of our money, you know,

         25  after the fact that we know what they have
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          2  available.  Those are the things that will make a

          3  difference in the Whitman Houses and Ingersoll, and

          4  Farragut, you know, in your district.

          5                 And I would be happy to talk more

          6  about it.  In terms of a district or zone, I do not

          7  know if that works.  I do not know if it works

          8  because, you know, usually the zones are created

          9  around, also, include a business, you know,

         10  component to that.  But I think the Navy Yard is

         11  something that we should leverage in a big way, and

         12  I am very committed in working with you to do that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I look forward

         14  to having further discussions with you.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Commissioner,

         16  may I encourage you just so that we can get everyone

         17  in here.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I apologize, I

         19  am long- winded. I was on a roll, and I did not even

         20  look to the right.  Did you notice that?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  That is, always

         22  look to the left, Sir, always look to the left.  May

         23  I encourage you to sharpen your statements.

         24                 Next, we will hear from the Council's

         25  noted conservative, Councilman Charles Barron.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you,

          3  Chairman Sanders. Conservative in terms of time, you

          4  mean?

          5                 Is this your staff here?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Is this my

          7  staff?  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Could they

          9  just stand up.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  They sure could,

         11  they are the ones that do the work.  Go ahead.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Oh, okay,

         13  that is the whole staff.  Only one black man, you

         14  only have one black man there, you know.  And this

         15  is what I was noticing.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Not necessarily.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  One, two, how

         18  many, raise your hand if you are a black man.  One,

         19  where, where?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Councilman

         21  Barron, I have to rule you in.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  This is an

         23  indication of the will.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Councilman

         25  Barron, I have two Assistant Commissioners who are
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          2  black men.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Two?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Two - -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Two out of

          6  six?  Wait, Larry, he can speak for himself.  So you

          7  have two Assistant Commissioners.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  That is right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  But on the

         10  real side, what is the percentage of black males

         11  employed in the agency, roughly?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I do not know.

         13  I will check. I am very proud of, in terms of

         14  managers, I probably have, we have 40 managers, I

         15  would probably say six, seven are black males.  I am

         16  overstating.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Brother man,

         18  is that true?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Out of order,

         20  please, do not answer that question.  Let's keep him

         21  employed.  Councilman Barron can we - -

         22                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I will get you

         23  the numbers.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  All right, I

         25  will be happy with the numbers on that.
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          2                 What is the amount of procurement

          3  contracts the City does - -

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  With the

          5  Department of Education, it is $9 billion.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Nine billion,

          7  and what percentage of that goes to people of color

          8  contractors?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  We are pouring

         10  through those numbers working with Medgar Evers on

         11  the programs.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Because this

         13  is real critical, because you know, even sometimes

         14  where we get polls, I heard we get 20 to 30 percent,

         15  people of color get 20 to 30 percent of the

         16  contracts.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I simply do not

         18  know the numbers are.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I am just

         20  saying what I heard, I am not holding you

         21  accountable for that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Commissioner,

         23  if you could speak into the mic more.  And I am sure

         24  we can get Council Member Barron's last question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  But if you
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          2  can get the amount of the, the percentage of the

          3  money that people of color get, because usually --

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  That is a good

          5  point.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: --  they give

          7  us a percentage of the contracts.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  On the

          9  contracts, good point.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  You can get

         11  30 percent of the contracts, and that could be $100

         12  million, but it would not be 30 percent of $9

         13  billion.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I think it is a

         15  very good point.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Yes, I think

         17  it is very important if we want to really rectify

         18  this that we look at those hard facts.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  And we are going

         20  agency by agency working with the group out of

         21  Medgar Evers that is doing the study.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  And the last

         23  question, in terms of the Empire Zone, is it

         24  possible to have any changes in them given a

         25  percentage of their profits back.  Because you know
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          2  what happens in our areas, corporations get these

          3  tax incentives, or tax breaks to come in and give

          4  these entry- level, minimum wage jobs, not living

          5  wage jobs, and then they reap big profits out of our

          6  community and call it economic development.

          7                 And I am wondering if that can be

          8  impacted by having a profit sharing, or ownership,

          9  like you are going to build a theater out in East

         10  New York, and we got the popcorn selling concession

         11  stand jobs, and some of the Redstone took off with

         12  billions and billions, millions and millions of

         13  dollars from what we paid to see the shows.  So how

         14  about if we, you know of 14 screens, if the

         15  community owned a couple of the screens, or some

         16  kind of profit sharing and ownership concept.  And I

         17  will stop there, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  The Empire Zone

         19  programs are State driven programs, and that is

         20  something that, you know, I do not mean to duct the

         21  question.  You know, quite frankly, I would like to

         22  see more Empire Zones in New York City.  We have

         23  half the population, we have 10 of the 70 Empire

         24  Zones.  And you know, that is one.

         25                 I would like to see us get,
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          2  obviously, a greater share.  I worked day and night

          3  on trying to get one right up the street here in

          4  Chinatown, and we were denied on that.  But the

          5  profit- sharing program is something that, one has

          6  to start from the State.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Are you

          8  familiar with the SUNY Bridge program?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I am not

         10  familiar with it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  They are here

         12  today, and I would just want to suggest that you

         13  connect with them, because they do excellent job

         14  preparation.  And that might be a good, good

         15  connection.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I would love to

         17  talk to them.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Okay, thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you very

         21  much, thanks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Let me remind

         23  my colleagues, and let me remind the audience that

         24  at one o'clock we are going to leave from here.  We

         25  will reconvene, and you may want to write this down,
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          2  my friends, we will reconvene at 250 Broadway, which

          3  is roughly across the street, on the 16th floor, at

          4  one o'clock we are going to leave from here to

          5  reconvene on the 16th floor.  I am trying to get as

          6  many of my colleagues as we can, and that is why I

          7  am encouraging brevity, brevity of expression, depth

          8  of thought.

          9                 Council Member Perkins.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I will do my

         11  best.  Why me, Lord?

         12                 But let me just say, Commissioner,

         13  first of all, thank you so much for your attendance

         14  and your efforts - -

         15                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: - - to do the

         17  job that you do for behalf of the City.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I appreciate it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And I have

         20  to commend you, you seem to know everybody's name up

         21  here, and reference to something you more or less

         22  done in our respective districts, and I thought that

         23  was a good, relating to our districts, and I thought

         24  that was a sign of some genuine interest on your

         25  part.
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          2                 Now having said all the good stuff,

          3  let me just be a little frank and share with you

          4  that what we are doing, what you are doing, may be

          5  worth while under normal circumstances, but may not

          6  quite fit the bill for a crisis circumstance.  For

          7  instance, it is my understanding that at the level

          8  of unemployment that we are seeing in the African-

          9  American community, if we wanted to get black men up

         10  to the level of employment that white men are, that

         11  it will require over 150,000 jobs.  That is a sort

         12  of modest, crude, estimation, but nevertheless,

         13  gives us a sense of the depth of the problem, only

         14  if we want to be equal to white men, which of

         15  course, I am sure we do.

         16                 So I would imagine that what we are

         17  doing under these present circumstances is clearly

         18  nowhere near that in terms of being able to address

         19  that crisis.  And I would not burden you with that,

         20  because that is not fair.

         21                 What I am concerned about is at what

         22  level are we really talking about this in the

         23  Administration?  Are you on the cabinet level with

         24  the Mayor and his Commissioners, saying, look we

         25  need at least 150,000 jobs to give this effort on
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          2  our part some credibility, do we have goals, do we

          3  have time tables, are we having a discussion at that

          4  level, or are we are just acting as if this is a

          5  normal way, a normal time, a normal, you know,

          6  things as usual?  Do you understand what I am

          7  concerned about?  Have you been involved with

          8  Doctoroff, with the Mayor, with whoever is the

          9  appropriate highest level to say, crisis, let's get

         10  the goals, let's get the time tables, let's get a

         11  rigorous effort that we can announce to the people

         12  of the City of New York about our understanding of

         13  this problem and that we are going to do something

         14  about it?

         15                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  It's a great

         16  question.  Anyone that knows Dan Doctoroff knows

         17  that he raises a very high bar on all his programs.

         18  I will tell you, when we were putting the M/WBE

         19  program together, the conversations that I had with

         20  the Mayor, and the Deputy Mayor, when I went in with

         21  programs, he often said, it simply is not enough,

         22  you are not moving the needle enough, the programs

         23  are not dramatic enough, go back and do it again.

         24  We went back over and over again.  And I think we

         25  have put a foundation in place to really make a
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          2  difference in that area.  And I feel good about what

          3  I am seeing, you know, in that area.

          4                 In terms of jobs, in terms of black

          5  male unemployment --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  If I may,

          7  for one second?

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Sure.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Have you all

         10  sat down and said, we have a crisis in the black

         11  communities with male unemployment?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I have not had

         13  that conversation.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Do you know

         15  if anyone has had that conversation?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I do not know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Do you think

         18  such a conversation is appropriate?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, then

         21  it would seem to me that they would at least send

         22  you a memo saying, we have had that conversation.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I will tell you

         24  what he has, I mean, the fact that, I mean think

         25  about this for a second.  We took an agency, the
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          2  Department of Employment, and folded we folded it

          3  into Economic Development, it is a change, it is a

          4  dramatic change. And with that change we ended up

          5  saying, we are going to link with those

          6  organizations that know communities the best.  It is

          7  a dramatic difference in the way things have been

          8  done in the past, in terms of linking jobs and

          9  opportunities.

         10                 And the example that I used up at

         11  125th Street, and the efforts that we are making on

         12  it, we never, ever, ever did that before.  We never

         13  turned to the Empowerment Zone, we never turned to

         14  Columbia University, we never turned to the

         15  Abersening (phonetic) Development Corporation, we

         16  never turned to the Business Improvement Districts,

         17  to work with us to make that happen.

         18                 I think that in itself makes a

         19  tremendous difference and will have, and we will

         20  have create gains.  When people, when African-

         21  American males, when women, anyone walks into those

         22  centers they should have a number of opportunities

         23  in the neighborhood and throughout the City.  And I

         24  think that is going - -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Well, again,
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          2  I commend you for the thinking in that direction to

          3  some extent.  But I honestly with no disrespect to

          4  you, - -

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  That is okay.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: - -  or to

          7  your intentions whatsoever, I think it does not

          8  quite represent the vision that is needed, because

          9  it is not a crisis vision that I see with that.  I

         10  see something that is as usual kind of a thing.

         11                 For instance, the war on poverty, you

         12  remember that phrase?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Do I remember

         14  it?  I remember it, I certainly do.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  The great

         16  society programs, remember that phrase?

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Sure do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  No matter

         19  how successful they were, more or less, the

         20  announcement of such a vision sort of emphasized the

         21  depth of the problem and the commitment, at least

         22  rhetorically, to address it.  I do not hear that

         23  coming from this Administration.

         24                 And I think that, and I am not saying

         25  that against, that has nothing to do with you, and I
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          2  want to keep saying this so you can understand where

          3  this is coming from.  I think that until we get that

          4  from this Administration, and I would dared say with

          5  all due respect, from this Council, then we may not

          6  be as credible in our efforts, as we should be, and

          7  as we need to be for the sake of the public.

          8                 For instance, how are what we are

          9  doing, as you were just outlining to us, how is that

         10  like adding up to a certain goal, a quantifiable

         11  goal of jobs?  Let's say, for this sake, 150,000

         12  jobs.  How are we, like, you know we have you have

         13  Comstat, and you have a way, and I am going to

         14  conclude, where you have a way of measuring police

         15  activity, where is the job stat, where is the black

         16  job stat that reflects that kind of urgency and that

         17  kind conscientious, comprehensive, intense look at

         18  how we as a City are addressing this crisis, and I

         19  just want to conclude with this emphasis, this is

         20  not just a black unemployment problem, this is a

         21  crisis for the people of the City of New York.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Commissioner,

         23  if you wanted to respond?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I will tell you

         25  that we look at this, and there is a great sense of
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          2  urgency of us getting these programs up and running.

          3    It is demand driven, it is proactive, we are

          4  looking at where the jobs are.  I think the examples

          5  that we show in some of the places, whether it has

          6  been Downtown Brooklyn, or 125th Street or the South

          7  Bronx, these efforts never, ever, ever took place,

          8  you know, before.  And I think they are going to

          9  show results.  Maybe we are not sending enough press

         10  releases out, maybe we are not standing on top of

         11  the soapbox, you know, to talk about it.  But I am

         12  convinced, you know, someone who came out of the

         13  Local Development Corporation and Business

         14  Improvement District, I have been around, you know,

         15  for 20 years in this business.  I have never seen an

         16  effort like this one, you know, that we are taking

         17  in terms of the One- Stops.  The One- Stops have to

         18  work.  I am convinced they can work, they can work

         19  if we put the resources in, they can work if we make

         20  a connection with community organizations, they can

         21  work, if Council member like yourself come out, look

         22  at it, talk about it, and have an impact,  and I

         23  have to tell you, if I come back in six months, I

         24  tell you, you are going to see some results and some

         25  real strong results.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

          3  much.  I have been promised by the next two speakers

          4  that they will speak briefly, and get us out of

          5  here.  Speaking very briefly, Council Member

          6  Seabrook.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

          8  very much, Mr. Chairman.  I am going to be very

          9  brief, but as you know, law and precedent.  That is

         10  your attorney back there?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  General Counsel.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Your

         13  General Counsel, all right, his research, Al Vann

         14  indicated that the government can do what it wants

         15  to when it wants to, here is your assignment.  The

         16  State of New York has 15- A, you need to look at 15-

         17  A, it has survived all scrutiny and allowed an

         18  existence.

         19                 Secondly, to set a side provision in

         20  the Dormitory Authority.  The State Dormitory

         21  Authority have set aside provisions that said that X

         22  amount of dollars and X amount of jobs has to be

         23  done, in statute, has been in statute, go check it

         24  out, and then report back to us on that.

         25                 Thirdly, the Federal government has
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          2  the 8- A program, all scrutiny and surviving.  One

          3  of the things that I found about us, we always look

          4  at the things that have failed,  but it does not

          5  stand scrutiny.  These are programs that are in

          6  existence that have stood the scrutiny, that is in

          7  statute.  And if we want to do something about that

          8  $1.2 billion that is going to be done with Local and

          9  Development Corporation, why don't you call the

         10  School Construction Authority, call the School

         11  Construction Authority, ask them about their program

         12  that they have in existence that provides

         13  opportunity and minority participation, then that is

         14  the goal in which you use, and that is the vehicle

         15  to spend this $1.2 billion, they have done it.

         16                 If you do research and you report

         17  back to this community and this Committee, you will

         18  see how they have done it. It is in statute, call

         19  and report back to this Committee.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you,

         23  Councilman, you are a man of your word.  Council

         24  Member Clarke.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chair.  And I want to thank both Chairs for

          3  really convening this really important hearing.

          4  Commissioner, I guess for me, I want to get a sense,

          5  and I have read your materials, and I have to say

          6  ditto to a lot of what Council Member Perkins has

          7  said.

          8                 I do not get a sense that there is a

          9  strategic plan looking at all of the agencies of the

         10  City of New York that have some input or some role

         11  to play in terms of community development. This task

         12  is much larger than your entity.  I mean it is much

         13  larger than your entity, and I feel for you in your

         14  position, because I know the work that your agency

         15  does, but this really transcends your agency.

         16                 The type of crisis we feel in

         17  communities of color, and which happens to be, and I

         18  think for some reason, it is like a marginal

         19  situation to have people looking at this.  We are

         20  talking about the majority of the people of the City

         21  of New York here.  And to the extend that we are

         22  able to categorize it and say black males, that is

         23  not to the exclusion of the black family, of

         24  communities of color.  And so when you have this

         25  type of chronic situation, you know, I found it
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          2  astounding that there has not been the type of

          3  cabinet level discussion about how we deal with

          4  policy adjustment in development to address it head

          5  on.  And that is my concern.

          6                 And to the extend of what you are

          7  doing now will make some in- roads, I do not know

          8  that that might not have to be redirected, to a

          9  certain degree, to address the type of real, chronic

         10  unemployment issues that is happening right now in

         11  the City of New York.  So my concern is that there

         12  be a real effort coming this Administration.  When I

         13  say, Administration, I mean every particular agency

         14  or entity that has to do with community development,

         15  job development, and economic development in the

         16  City of New York, to come up with a comprehensive

         17  plan that addresses real growth in development of

         18  job and entrepreneurial opportunities.  And the

         19  piecemeal approach is not going to hit the mark.

         20                 Let me also say that while we look

         21  forward to the One- Stops idea and its innovation,

         22  the marketing, who is going to be responsible for

         23  letting all of these people know that these One

         24  Stops exist, how to get there, and where they exist,

         25  and what they can expect from those One- Stops?
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          2  That is a critical piece, not only that, I am

          3  concerned once that information gets out, what is

          4  the staffing level like for a One- Stop, will they

          5  be able to, you know, once the clergy kick in and

          6  say, you know what, you are unemployed out there, I

          7  am sending my congregation over, will you be able to

          8  handle, you know, the numbers of unemployed,

          9  untrained, individuals who are looking for help from

         10  the City of New York? All of this has to be put

         11  together in some sort of comprehensive matter, so

         12  that there is not an overwhelming, there is an

         13  unrealistic expectation of what can be achieved

         14  through this mechanism, and I do not get a sense of

         15  that.

         16                 I want to be sure that whatever we

         17  plan to do, it is realistic.  You know, I do not

         18  want to us raising false hope, because people are

         19  desperate right now.  And you know, desperate times

         20  call for desperate measures, but I see, what I have

         21  heard in presentation, quite frankly, is great in

         22  times when we are not overwhelmed by a situation.

         23  Right now, we are overwhelmed, and we do not get - -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Council member,

         25  you are summing up?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Yes, I am

          3  summing up.  The $1.2 billion that has been

          4  allocated to the Lower Manhattan Development

          5  Corporation, the Community Development Block Grant,

          6  that piece needs to be broken out so that we have a

          7  clear sense in terms of what is going to be done

          8  with this?  You know, this vagueness of, you know,

          9  how this matter is going to be handled is not

         10  appropriate for an oversight entity, we need to know

         11  specifically what the thinking is, how it is going

         12  to be dealt with, and how that relates to a number

         13  of the specific recommendations that have come out

         14  of, for instance, the labor community advisory

         15  network.  What kind of dialogue and discussion has

         16  been put in place to look at how these community

         17  development block grant funds are going to be

         18  funneled into the communities that need them most?

         19                 I would like for us to get some

         20  answers on this, and this is really just the

         21  beginning of an ongoing discussions of what needs to

         22  be happening right now in the City of New York with

         23  respect to development of our communities and

         24  addressing this unemployment situation.

         25                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you.

          3  Commissioner, if you wanted to respond, if you

          4  wanted to briefly respond, Sir.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I will, very

          6  briefly, I got the message.  When you talk about the

          7  One- Stops and you talk about vouchers, and you

          8  start talking about the money that we are spending

          9  on the contractors, and you add it all up together,

         10  my numbers, on a back of a piece of paper tell me,

         11  it is $52 million. It is $52 million, you know, by

         12  the end of this calendar year, we will probably

         13  serve close to 175,000 people at the five One-

         14  Stops, that is a big leap, it is a big jump.

         15                 You know, you have to remember that

         16  these are One Stops that are newly created that will

         17  have a business services side on it.  You are right

         18  about marketing, you are absolutely right about

         19  marketing in terms of getting the message out, you

         20  know, I was having a conversation with Larry

         21  Seabrook and Charles Barron before the session, is

         22  we better do a good job, you know, in marketing

         23  these programs, and getting it to, you know, people

         24  understand it is not just for the unemployed, it is

         25  also for people with college, you know, diplomas,
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          2  high school diplomas, and getting the message out.

          3                 And our marketing has to be readable,

          4  understandable, and it has to get out on the

          5  grassroots levels. And I think the good news on that

          6  is this is an agency that has a phenomenal network

          7  of Local Development Corporations, you know, and

          8  community- based organizations to make that happen.

          9  But we are going to have to be, we are going to have

         10  to turn to experts, quite frankly, on making sure

         11  that the marketing material that we have makes a

         12  difference.

         13                 You talked about Lower Manhattan, we

         14  have five One Stops now, we will have a sixth One-

         15  Stop, and it will be in Lower Manhattan because

         16  there is a great need.  We are at the table with the

         17  Lower Manhattan Development Corporation, we are

         18  working hard, you know, to see where the

         19  opportunities are there and make it happen.

         20                 I can only say if you are not feeling

         21  the sense of urgency, you know, perhaps I have not

         22  done my job in making the case.  There is a good

         23  sense of urgency on every project in every Borough,

         24  in every place, in every organization that I touch

         25  upon. I said at the outset that this agency cannot
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          2  provide all the answers, but they can make a

          3  significant difference.  And I can assure you the

          4  Administration, the Mayor, the Deputy Mayor, if they

          5  had not had a meeting on a crisis, or I did not get

          6  a memo on, you know, with regard to a crisis, this

          7  has been on their mind in every program that I have

          8  talked about.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Ma'am, I have

         10  to say no, I have got, if you come across the

         11  street, I would be glad to give you more time, but I

         12  have two more speakers that I am going to have

         13  speak.  We are supposed to be out at one o'clock,

         14  three more speakers.  Council Member Brewer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         16  very much.  And I hope that what we could do, Rob,

         17  was to have with the Committee, perhaps, the

         18  Chairperson's indulgence, maybe an ongoing

         19  discussion, you know with your staff.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  It should be

         21  with me, included.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, we did

         23  this the other day with Technology and the EDC and

         24  some of your staff talking about technology issues,

         25  and it was very enlightening.  So I am just saying
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          2  that workforce development, I think that might be a

          3  way to proceed.  So maybe the Chairs could consider

          4  that.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I would welcome

          6  it, and I also mention the fact that let's just get

          7  out there and take a look at some of these places,

          8  see what you think.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I have been,

         10  thanks to Henrietta Lyle, to the 125th Street.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Great, terrific.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  She is great,

         13  she is a 30 year friend.  And also to, just in terms

         14  of marketing, even just a sign in front of 125th

         15  Street, - -

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I agree, I agree

         17  with you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: - -  would be

         19  great.

         20                 A couple of questions, one is the

         21  State of New York Labor Department, I have been to

         22  54th Street, and I have to some to some of their 11

         23  sites in the City of New York.  And with all due

         24  respect to their staff, and I know they work hard,

         25  is a little outdated, to put it mildly.  And so the
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          2  question is, how we can as a City push the Governor,

          3  or push the Department of Labor, you know, they are

          4  supporting you, they are working in side- by- side,

          5  et cetera.  But the databases are different.  If I

          6  go to 54th Street and I go 125th Street looking for

          7  a job, there are two different databases.  I know

          8  you are working on it, but these are things that has

          9  to be done in order to be customer friendly.

         10                 So my first question is, what are we

         11  doing, obviously tax is the name of the game, with

         12  the State's Department of Labor to be more in sync.

         13  They need to be pushed, you are kind ahead of the

         14  curb, but what is the game plan?

         15                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Well the game

         16  plan is we have been sitting down with the State

         17  Department.  They have a new regional administrator,

         18  I think he gets it, his name is John Harloften

         19  (phonetic), you know we have been sitting with him,

         20  he understands that it is outdated.  And I certainly

         21  understand that our technology is not linked as it

         22  should be, we need to put a lot more effort into

         23  that.  We need to make our programs a lot more

         24  accessible by technology in getting forms,

         25  registering, going through, you know, certain pre-
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          2  employment exercises on the Internet, you know where

          3  people could be available on that.

          4                 But I think that, in the

          5  conversations I have had with people at the State,

          6  Maggie Morray, Don Hauloff, Linda Fare, they realize

          7  that they need to bring up, you know, the quality

          8  and the professionalism of their sites.  And I feel

          9  good about some of the gains that they made in that

         10  area.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, because

         12  I think one of the issues that we learned from

         13  Mandarin Oriental, and I thank you for your

         14  comments, is that it is the crisis mentality that

         15  can drive it.  What we did then was we made the

         16  Housing Authority, HRA, your agency, private sector,

         17  sit down every single week and go through it.  And

         18  that is what you need to do within the City, I

         19  think.  If you are going to work with some of the

         20  developments in Council Member James' District with

         21  NYCHA it means they have to sit down every single

         22  week.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  It is a lot of

         24  work.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It is a lot
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          2  of work, and it almost, you know, development by

          3  development, project by project in the sense of job

          4  development.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  We are ready to

          6  do that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know that,

          8  but you need the City Council and the community

          9  boards in order to do that.  It does, you can not do

         10  it from top, down.  It has to be from bottom, up.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I could not

         12  agree with you more.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So my

         14  question then is, very quick, because I know time is

         15  of the essence.  There are a lot of developments,

         16  public and private coming into the City of New York.

         17  What is the strategy as one, everything from P.C.

         18  Richards to private, large developments, how do you

         19  literally look at each and every one, are they on a

         20  big database, GIS that says these are the

         21  developments and this is the strategy for getting

         22  New Yorkers' jobs?  What is the game plan for

         23  working with all the different agencies to address

         24  that crisis?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  The game plan
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          2  that we have been, we have been working with EDC,

          3  and EDC has been tremendous in giving us help.

          4  Obviously, we have been breaking it down Borough by

          5  Borough, you know, and taking a look by Borough by

          6  Borough.  So in Brooklyn, I can tell you where the

          7  growth area is.  And we have gotten a lot help from

          8  the outside.  I will use Brooklyn as an example,

          9  just to, and this is something that we need to

         10  repeat over and over again.

         11                 We got help from Michael Porter who

         12  is up at Harvard, he is their Business School.  He

         13  has focused on the what the poor growth areas are

         14  going to be in Brooklyn.  They are: Hospitality and

         15  Tourism, Real Estate and Construction, Health

         16  Services, and what am I missing, Food Processing.

         17  Those are the four areas that are growth areas.

         18                 Now we have to drill deeper, and say

         19  what is it on Health Services.  We are getting help

         20  from Stan Bresnoff on that. Stan knows a bit about

         21  health services.  He is cheering that effort.

         22                 Now if we are going to focus in the

         23  Health Services, we have to ask questions like,

         24  okay, what is taking place at the different CUNYS,

         25  at the different colleges, at the different
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          2  universities like Kingsborough.  That is the type of

          3  effort that has to be repeated Borough by Borough by

          4  Borough.  Let's find out where the growth areas are,

          5  let's find out where the opportunities are, map it

          6  all out, and bring it back.  And that is something

          7  that we need to demand that our contractors, who are

          8  spending a lot of money, is going to be up to 20

          9  people from some of these different non- profits

         10  when I mentioned Wildcat.  I mean, they can handle

         11  the capacity.  They can handle it, they can make

         12  things happen, when you talk about 20 people there,

         13  the State Department of Labor having a presence, and

         14  we having a presence, to make a difference.

         15                 But my belief is that we could, if we

         16  take that model that we have started in Brooklyn,

         17  and we look at the focus areas of where the growth

         18  is, look at the high unemployment, and start

         19  thinking about the different links.  And then long-

         20  term is, who is training the people?

         21                 You know, one of the groups that we

         22  have do a better job with is the CUNY system.  And

         23  we have been talking to CUNY, we have been working

         24  with, - -  Are you guys SUNY?  But it is all okay,

         25  right?  We just have to do better, we have to do a
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          2  better job in that area.

          3                 I was out at Queens Borough Community

          4  College two weeks ago.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Sharp answers,

          6  Sir.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I just want to

          8  use this as an example, with the precedent, we know

          9  that the New York Times is growing in College Point.

         10    What could we do to use a customized training

         11  program to link Queens Borough Community College

         12  with the growth area at that specific plant.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I agree.  It

         14  is just that we have been talking about this, not

         15  under your leadership, but others for a very long

         16  time.  So it is now time to do it, quickly.

         17                 Thank you very much, Chair people.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you,

         19  Council member. Council Member Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Just in

         21  deference of time, I am actually not going to ask

         22  questions.  I am just going make two statements.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  One is in your

         25  entire testimony there was no reference to this
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          2  issue and how it intersects with the redevelopment

          3  of the West Side, which of course, the

          4  Administration and I have disagreements around in a

          5  lot of places, but parts of it, like the Javits

          6  expansion and some rezoning plan, we all want to

          7  have happen.  It is the biggest part, it is the

          8  entirety almost of the economic development plan of

          9  the Bloomberg Administration.  To leave it out, is a

         10  glaring omission and raises a big question for me

         11  about how comprehensive the unemployment reduction

         12  plans really are?

         13                 Beyond that, I am thrilled to hear

         14  you talking about health care as it relates to jobs,

         15  because it is the first time that has really

         16  happened.  But I am dismayed that as the Health

         17  Chair, no one has reached out to me.  I am

         18  particularly dismayed because the Health Committee

         19  with Speaker Vallone twice had two round table

         20  meetings, the first one with Doctor Chu as the HHC

         21  rep, and the Presidents of all the private hospitals

         22  in the City, to say how can we in City government

         23  help you  It was the first time that City government

         24  had ever done that.

         25                 And then the second one with Doctor
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          2  Chu and all the heads of his 11 institutions.  This

          3  issue of connecting the dots between the shortages

          4  in health care and the unemployment rates was a

          5  topic at both of the meetings that HHC was at.  One

          6  meeting exclusively for HHC.  So that there would

          7  not be then the closing of the loop knowing we had

          8  told you and offered to help, that it was a priority

          9  for us, that we would not have been gotten back to,

         10  raises a question for me again, about the

         11  comprehensive and holistic nature of this, and

         12  whether that is really there.  So we should follow-

         13  up about that after this hearing.

         14                 And just lastly, Carl in your office

         15  is fabulous about getting back to people in a prompt

         16  matter, I just wanted to let you know that.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  That is great,

         18  that is nice to hear.  That is good news.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So that is a

         20  nice thing.  The first two things not so nice, I

         21  think there are problems there, and we should talk

         22  in the future.  But Carl is terrific.  Thank you.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  That is nice to

         24  hear, thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Well put.  Our
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          2  last questioner on this part of the session is

          3  Council Member Reyna.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I just have a

          5  proposal to make with Commissioner Walsh.  Last

          6  week, on Friday, we had our first hearing for the

          7  Subcommittee on Public Housing regarding the

          8  Community Service Requirement passed in 1998 in

          9  federal government. I think it is shameful that the

         10  federal government is forcing people in public

         11  housing to volunteer, which takes away from the

         12  effort of volunteering, now it is forced labor.

         13                 In regards to that, I want to be able

         14  to match up an approximate 80,000 people who will be

         15  affected by this law, mandated by the federal

         16  government to force them to volunteer. Instead of

         17  forcing to volunteer, how can we, as far as your

         18  Department and New York City Housing Authority's

         19  Chair and Department, to be able to work together

         20  with my Committee to be able to have and say at the

         21  end of the day the outcome of 80,000 people being

         22  steered towards full- time employment and retention.

         23                 If we can begin that dialogue,

         24  immediately, I have spoken to the Chair, he is

         25  interested, and if we could just bring you to the
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          2  table, I think that would be the answer.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Yes, that would

          4  be great.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  To a lot of

          6  what we have just highlighted in this hearing.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I think it is a

          8  good point, and I have talked to Tino Hernandez and

          9  his staff on a regular basis, because my belief on a

         10  lot of these projects whether it is in your district

         11  or other districts.  You know, we can have a

         12  tremendous impact in there.

         13                 And I also realize, and I use the

         14  example of Red Hook, because I know it best.  And

         15  there is a woman by the name of Jackie Williams who

         16  has been working with Stride to talk about job

         17  readiness.  And you know, I also talked about, if we

         18  could end up, I do not want to say pulling our money

         19  together, but seeing what Tino can do, and then what

         20  efforts we can make, you know, in addition to that,

         21  it would make a difference.  So I welcome being part

         22  of that dialogue.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Just to make

         24  sure that we do not forget these comprehensive plan

         25  and details, aside from the Jacob Javits Center, we
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          2  have the Nets Stadium, we have the Pier

          3  Redevelopment for cruise ship terminals that will be

          4  in the spectrum of Brooklyn and Manhattan, as well

          5  as the World Trade Center.  These are all

          6  opportunities that will bring jobs to the table.

          7  How do we match up that workforce with the work

          8  labor of individuals getting the proper training and

          9  skills to become ready for that?

         10                 And in addition to that, what type

         11  for voucher system will be in place, if it is all

         12  ready in place, you mentioned vouchers, but I am not

         13  too sure how that is going to play up.  Is it that

         14  if I am interested in becoming employed, I first

         15  have to go through an orientation.  Am I going to be

         16  paid for that orientation to be able to pay my rent

         17  and utilities at the end of the day.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I do not think

         19  we can do that under --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  That leaves a

         21  question.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  It is under

         23  federal law, I do not think that we can do that.

         24  And I understand that it is a burden on people.

         25  What we have been trying to do, is expedite that as
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          2  quick as possible in terms of getting people in and

          3  out and make it short.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Council Member

          5  James had mentioned TANF and how that should be - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Council member,

          7  if you will raise your last question, you sharp last

          8  question?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Sure, this is

         10  just the last reference.  Council Member James had

         11  mentioned how we should be creative in using TANF

         12  dollars.  It is important that we realize, and I see

         13  that he is nodding no.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Yes, we do not

         15  administer the TANF program.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I understand

         17  that.  It is a matter of just being cognizant of the

         18  fact that we cannot expect people to train for free,

         19  because knocking at their door will be the landlord,

         20  the gas company, the electric company asking for

         21  payment.  And so if we can just be cognizant of

         22  those factors in order to be able to have a positive

         23  outcome.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  And I guess that

         25  is part of our thinking in terms of bringing the
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          2  services and the One- Stops closer to the people and

          3  they do not have to guess in terms of where the

          4  services are, and tapping into some of the

          5  community- based organizations that know better than

          6  we do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And than you,

          8  Commissioner. I think your Department is a fabulous

          9  Department.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you, it is

         11  nice of you to say that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And we look

         13  forward to working with you.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Well you have

         15  been wonderful on that, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  I misspoke

         17  (sic), Council Member Vann will have the last

         18  question.  Council member.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  We are on

         20  borrowed time, so I will be very brief, and we may

         21  be able to continue afterwards.  I Chair the Select

         22  Committee on Community Development.  Essentially,

         23  what I am attempting to do, and I have been meeting

         24  with active Commissions and people of expertise,

         25  community people, is to, and what we have identified
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          2  are the highest poverty, areas of poverty in the

          3  City of New York, which happens to be the areas of

          4  highest unemployment, areas of greatest health,

          5  negative industries and all the other concomitants

          6  of poverty.

          7                 My approach is to designate these

          8  areas, which would be smaller than Empire State

          9  Zones, smaller than the federal designations, but

         10  the neighborhood pockets of, let's say poverty for

         11  lack of another word.  And the idea is, once you

         12  designate or find these areas, if you designate

         13  these areas, that we will be able to bring

         14  extraordinary aid.

         15                 This is one approach to deal with

         16  this whole major crisis of poverty.  There are a

         17  number of things we are trying to do, but it seems

         18  to me, one approach is to go exactly in the

         19  neighborhoods where we know it is most severe, most

         20  distressed.

         21                 Now how do you, and to support those

         22  community- based organizations and others that are

         23  doing work skill, so and so and so forth, how does

         24  you Small Business Administration, how do you fit

         25  into that type of strategy, can you feed into that
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          2  strategy?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  We could, and I

          4  not going to pretend I am going to have the answer

          5  to it.  Because I think what I would do, Council

          6  member, is I would turn to you, in the case of Bed-

          7  Sty, for example, we would come to you and we would

          8  talk to you about the organizations and the

          9  community- based organizations that make a

         10  difference.  I quickly thing of Bed- Sty

         11  Restoration, because that is one of the

         12  organizations I know.  And it is such a beacon on

         13  Fulton Street.  But there is obviously, a lot of

         14  other organizations, you know, faith- based

         15  organizations, YMCAs, you name it that have such

         16  networks.

         17                 And I would love to sit down with

         18  you, because I am not going to pretend that I have

         19  answer, and I am not going to pretend that what

         20  works in your district, is going to work exactly the

         21  same in Councilman Seabrook's areas.  And I think we

         22  have to tailor make it according to the districts.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you,

         24  Council member. Let me do two things.  One, is a

         25  point of information. Commissioner, I spoke to
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          2  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff on the crisis that are we are

          3  facing, so he had been made aware.  I spoke with

          4  some programs.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  And he has been

          6  extremely supportive of what used to be called the

          7  Small Department of Small Business Services.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Okay, this

          9  should make your going back there easier, since he

         10  had been made aware.

         11                 The second thing is this, my friends,

         12  you may want to take out a piece of paper for this

         13  one.  We are reconvening at 250 Broadway, which is

         14  across the street.  We are going to reconvene on the

         15  16th floor, the time is approximately 1:20, at 1:35

         16  we are going to begin the hearing again.

         17                 Having said that, I want to thank the

         18  Chair of Health, Christine Quinn, of course, and

         19  Council Member Lopez, who were kind enough to let us

         20  have this amount of time.  And with that, this part,

         21  oh, of course, we have to thank our Commissioner and

         22  his worthy staff for being here and to answer all

         23  those questions.  We understand that this dialogue

         24  must continue, that this is a mere beginner.  I

         25  apologize to all who I have mistreated in here, I
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          2  somehow do that.

          3                 We will recess this hearing.

          4                 (recess taken.)

          5                 Good afternoon, my name is Councilman

          6  James Sanders, Jr.  I am the Chair of Economic

          7  Development for the great City of New York.  And we

          8  have been doing a hearing on a paper that came out

          9  called, "The Crisis of Black Male Employment," or

         10  unemployment, if you wish.   I want to, of course,

         11  alert everyone that that paper did not simply speak

         12  of black male unemployment, it also spoke of the

         13  unemployment of black women.  It is also spoke of

         14  the unemployment of the Latino community, Asian

         15  community, and the white community.  And we, as the

         16  City Council, have an obligation to target and do

         17  something about these things.

         18                 But you have heard my voice too much

         19  this morning, and I am interested in hearing yours.

         20  So I am not going to spend a lot of time talking.  I

         21  just wanted to make sure that you were in the right

         22  place.  I do not want you here believing that this

         23  will be a Health Committee meeting, although we are

         24  speaking about the City's health.

         25                 Now let's hear from real people, if
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          2  you wish, some folks on the other side of this

          3  dilemma, the dilemma of unemployment, of course.  I

          4  know the feeling, but right now we are going to hear

          5  from one of my namesakes.  There is a gentleman

          6  named Nick Sanders in the audience, I believe, Nick

          7  Sanders.  Oh, my, my, oh, a Sanders late, boy, I

          8  tell you, that does not look good.  And of course

          9  there is a lady named, I believe it is a young lady

         10  name, Pearl Barkley.  Say again?  Okay, then I will

         11  take that to mean that you are Ms. Pearl Barkley.

         12  Then it is a pleasure to have you here.  Would you

         13  be kind enough to take that seat, Ms. Barkley.

         14                 This device is such, that when that

         15  red light is off, when it is not on, you can speak.

         16  When that red light is not buzzing, so right now,

         17  you are going to have to push that button so you can

         18  speak.  No, no, it is off right now, that is what I

         19  was encouraging, and when its your moment, when you

         20  get up to bat, you want to push that button in, and

         21  when it's off, it's on.  Yes, I know it sounds

         22  complicated, but this is the City Council, my

         23  friends.

         24                 With that in mind, I am glad that

         25  everybody is here now.  I ask for your indulgence
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          2  and your forgiveness in advance. I am going to have

          3  to hold people to a certain time, because I want to

          4  hear everyone in here.  So they chose me because you

          5  know that former Marine thing.  So, Ms. Barkley, if

          6  you could begin, and if you could keep it within two

          7  minutes, that way my colleagues, who are Council

          8  Member Al Vann, and Council Member Charles Barron,

          9  or anyone else can raise some questions.

         10                 Without further ado, Ms. Barkley, if

         11  you push that button, you can speak.

         12                 MS. BARKLEY:  Thank you members of

         13  the City Council General Welfare Committee, the

         14  Economic Committee, and the Select Committee on

         15  Community Development.  My name is Pearl Barkley,

         16  and I am a member of NYUP.  I come to you today, to

         17  talk about not only my problems with employment, but

         18  also the problems that I have observed from my

         19  family members, friends, and colleagues.  To say

         20  things are bad is an understatement, to say the

         21  least.  Although, it is bad now, I would say that

         22  things have merely gotten progressively worse since

         23  the World Trade Center tragedy.

         24                 Society has been moving to this point

         25  of impending chaos for some time.  Professionally, I
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          2  am an uncertified teacher, I have a Bachelor's

          3  Degree in Science, and I am also an A+ Certified

          4  Computer Repair Technician.  My immediate experience

          5  with the economy is to simply say, I am currently

          6  underemployed, have many times been unemployed, and

          7  as far as I am concerned I have always been

          8  underpaid.  I tutored the Biological Sciences for

          9  many years at BMCC, and prior to that I worked as an

         10  Administrative Assistant for the City of New York.

         11  I recently used up all of my 26 weeks of

         12  unemployment after being laid off from my last job,

         13  and now work part- time as a tutor.

         14                 To make ends meet, I use my credit

         15  card, so pretty soon I will probably have to apply

         16  for debt consolidation.  I do have hope for the

         17  future because I am an accepted applicant in the New

         18  York City Teaching Fellows Programs.  It is my

         19  intent that I will complete the pre- service

         20  training program successfully this summer and be

         21  gainfully employed as a teacher for the New York

         22  City Board of Ed in the fall.  The experience that I

         23  went through at my last job provides a sterling

         24  example of the abuses that many workers endure due

         25  to working without union protections.  The current
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          2  circumstances in the labor market, i.e., lack of

          3  jobs, influences from globalization, corporate

          4  downsizing, et cetera, have created an employer's

          5  market, with some employer's behave with impunity.

          6                 The last position I had was that of a

          7  computer teacher in a private school, while I was

          8  also a desktop publisher, a computer repair

          9  technician, and a computer lab manager.  All for the

         10  wonderful salary of $29,000 per year.  My benefits

         11  were minimal, medical, but no dental.  To top this

         12  off, a white man who had always worked in Corporate

         13  America replaced me.  I did not even know I was

         14  being replaced until I attended a summer school

         15  meeting, and found out that I was simply not on the

         16  schedule.  This man told me that since he was laid

         17  off of his job, he was through with Corporate

         18  America.  He also informed me that he was laid off

         19  of at least seven jobs in a five- year period of

         20  time.

         21                 Thirty more seconds, at this point I

         22  would like to share with you some of the words from

         23  the late, great, Martin Luther King, where do we go

         24  from here, chaos or community?  This was done in

         25  1967.  The curse of poverty has no justification at
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          2  our age, it is a socially cruel and blind as the

          3  practice of cannibalism at the dawn of civilization.

          4    When men ate one another because they had yet

          5  learned to take food from the soil, or to consume

          6  the abundant animal life around them.

          7                 The time has come for us to civilize

          8  ourselves by the total, direct, and immediate

          9  abolition of poverty.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you.  We

         12  have also been joined by Council Member, I almost

         13  said Al Vann, and looked at Larry Seabrook.  Boy, I

         14  tell you somebody could say something about that,

         15  but thank God, they did not.

         16                 Is Nick Sanders here, has he come

         17  back?  Well if that is the case, let me move to,

         18  yes, there is an organization that has done, there

         19  are two organizations, at least, and perhaps even

         20  three, who have done the City a great deal, a great

         21  service by pointing out problems that many of us

         22  thought we understood, thought we had a grip on.

         23  And one, of course, is the Community Service

         24  Society, which is represented here by Mark Levitan,

         25  I believe, and if he is here, if he can go to that,
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          2  yes, Sir, would you be kind enough to go into your

          3  seat, Sir.

          4                 We also received a report from a

          5  group called, BIG, Blacks In Government, which is

          6  represented here today by Brandon Ward, I believe

          7  that Brandon Ward will take, well, he make his

          8  presence known, but Nancy Biberman is here, and she

          9  is.  Oh boy, okay, let's do this title, I was about

         10  to try to do it without looking, but I know the

         11  first one is Women, you know what I am not going to

         12  show my mistake up here, I am going to have, Ms.

         13  Biberman, would you be kind enough to take your seat

         14  there, and would you, again, my friends be kind

         15  enough to re- identify yourselves when you speak and

         16  correct how I probably really have chewed up your

         17  name something awful.

         18                 While she is getting it together, I

         19  will have you begin, Sir, would you be kind enough?

         20                 MR. LEVITAN:  Yes, I am Mark Levitan,

         21  Senior Policy Analyst for the Community Service

         22  Society of New York.  I will be brief there are a

         23  lot of people here who have a lot of important

         24  things to say.

         25                 The most important implication of the
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          2  report we wrote is that we cannot assume that the

          3  economic recovery that we are finally beginning to

          4  see in this City is going to alleviate the levels of

          5  joblessness that we uncovered in our report.  We

          6  found that 52 percent, only 52 percent of black men

          7  were employed in the year 2003.  That is a very

          8  scary number.  But what makes it even more

          9  disturbing was how little progress, black men made

         10  in a period when the City was generating 90,000 jobs

         11  per year.

         12                 No one believes that we are going

         13  back to that rate of job growth.  The record is that

         14  some groups, even in the best of times get left

         15  behind.  If we adopt the stance of business as

         16  usual, no progress will be made.

         17                 What to do, two things.  One is an

         18  opportunity we see in Lower Manhattan.  Lower

         19  Manhattan Development Corporation has $1.2 billion

         20  of yet uncommitted funds, Community Development

         21  Block Grant funds.  There are people here who are

         22  going to develop that proposal, and so I am not

         23  going to go into details about it. But I think this

         24  is an area where the Mayor and the City Council have

         25  an obligation to push LMDC to use that money on
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          2  projects that are going to create jobs on low-

          3  income New Yorkers.

          4                 The second opportunity before the

          5  City was exemplified by the precedent that the Mayor

          6  and the Governor held last month when they unveiled

          7  their plans for our West Side.  The Mayor said this

          8  was going to create 42,000 construction jobs, 17.5

          9  thousand permanent jobs.  The question before us is,

         10  who is going to get those jobs?

         11                 We heard from Commissioner Walsh

         12  before, and he mentioned Boston, and he said Boston

         13  is way ahead of us when it comes to workforce

         14  development.  And a lot of that is infrastructure,

         15  but that something else is going on in Boston that

         16  does not happen here, and that is Boston has a

         17  policy.  There is not just a set of programs, and

         18  officers and infrastructure.  There is a policy,

         19  there are three policies, in particular, we need to

         20  look at and learn from.  There is a first source

         21  hiring policy that commits, requires recipients of

         22  Economic Development Aid to hire people of color,

         23  City residents, people from disadvantaged

         24  backgrounds.

         25                 There is a Jobs Trust Fund Policy
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          2  that requires firms that are operating in places

          3  where there have been zoning variances to kick in

          4  money for training programs.  The Commissioner will

          5  tell you, I am spending all the money I have, we

          6  have to identify new sources of money, that is one

          7  way to do it.

          8                 The third policy that Boston has, is

          9  reporting requirements.  Everyone who is doing

         10  business with the City has to file reports on the

         11  racial, gender, geographic complexion of their

         12  workforce in the City of Boston.  This reporting

         13  stuff is really, in a way, the place to begin.

         14  Because the case for a target for goals would be

         15  much stronger both politically and legally, if we

         16  had the solid data to back it up.  So the place to

         17  begin is, I think, with the reporting requirement.

         18                 There are lots of other people here,

         19  so I am going to cut myself off and turn it over.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

         21  much, Sir, well put, and brief, boy, I go for these

         22  things.  Ma'am, would you be kind enough?

         23                 MS. BIBERMAN:  Thank you.  I am Nancy

         24  Biberman, President of the Women's Housing and

         25  Economic Development Corporation, also known as
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          2  WHEDCO.  We are located in the Bronx, and we are a

          3  service providing organization, and frankly, a One

          4  Stop.  And I had some prepared comments, which you

          5  all have titled, "Creating a Citywide Program to

          6  Train the Long- Term, Chronically Unemployed," by

          7  combining a transitional jobs program with

          8  comprehensive human capital development.

          9                 I want to read a little bit from

         10  this, but then I really feel that I have to comment

         11  on some of the things that were said this morning

         12  that I think warrant a response from those of us who

         13  have been working in this field and on the ground

         14  for a long time.

         15                 New York is definitely, in the middle

         16  of what they called a perfect storm, a set of

         17  conditions that really are creating a maelstrom of

         18  economic chaos and human distress.  I think that

         19  Mark and CSS's report, you know, did us all a great

         20  service by putting out this number that everybody

         21  who works and lives in low income communities knows

         22  full well, but it is really hard to get people to

         23  pay attention to it, you know, unless it is sort of

         24  stunning and dramatic report like that.  So I think

         25  we all owe CSS a debt of gratitude for this.
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          2                 There needs to be, and I was so

          3  thrilled to hear so many people saying this morning,

          4  a comprehensive, aggressive, emergency strategy to

          5  put people to work.  But the fact of the matter is

          6  we do not have to reinvent any wheels.  And it is

          7  really important that I think that the Council sort

          8  of like understand this.  I was glad to hear Council

          9  Member Vann talking about it, you know, working

         10  directly with community- based organizations who are

         11  all ready doing this work, and I think it is really

         12  important that you all understand that the One- Stop

         13  system that you all heard about this morning is a

         14  shell of an infrastructure, and that the real work

         15  being done to train a chronically unemployed people

         16  is being done by community- based organizations all

         17  over the City.  And it is my worry, my real worry,

         18  you know, that this infrastructure, you know,

         19  marketing, the fact that nobody knows where it is,

         20  on some level that speaks for itself.  You know,

         21  people know where community- based organizations

         22  that do training and get people jobs. If they do not

         23  know where One- Stops are, there is a reason, and

         24  because nothing is happening there.

         25                 What we did not here much talk about
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          2  was the creation of the so- called affiliates to

          3  One- Stops, and by that I sort of, I heard that to

          4  mean, you know that the community- based

          5  organizations who are really doing the work, that is

          6  where the scrutiny needs to be.  You know, where is

          7  this money going, is it going to sort of like

          8  creating buildings with signs, that nothing goes on

          9  inside of, or is it going into real programs and

         10  services that are truly comprehensive.  What is

         11  comprehensive, human, capital development mean?  It

         12  means dealing with literacy, it means dealing with

         13  job skills, it means dealing with child care, it

         14  means creating business incubators, it means working

         15  on micro enterprise, it means doing it all in one

         16  place.  That is a One- Stop, when somebody comes in

         17  and says, you know, I do not know if I am really set

         18  out to work for an employer, but I have an

         19  entrepreneurial spirit, can you help me.  And you

         20  really do help somebody create a micro enterprise

         21  program.

         22                 We have a micro enterprise program

         23  and home- base childcare in the Bronx.  This program

         24  is generating, these businesswomen are generating

         25  $3.5 million annually, gross revenues annually, 135,
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          2  138, I forget the number frankly, with 800 children

          3  in care.  This is genuine micro enterprise, it is

          4  happening, it can continue to happen.

          5                 We have a business incubator, you do

          6  not have to create more incubators, we have a huge

          7  commercial kitchen in which we have food producers

          8  from all over the City who are coming and working

          9  24/7.  They can create jobs.  You do not have to

         10  build more buildings.

         11                 And you know, I think it is fair to

         12  say that with every single idea that you heard from

         13  the Administration this morning, it was about

         14  building buildings and creating infrastructure.  And

         15  really what I implore you to look at the

         16  communities, look at the community- based

         17  organizations that are doing the work, do not

         18  reinvent the wheel, we have been here, we have done

         19  that for a long, long time.

         20                 Finally, with respect to, you know,

         21  the one- based contractors, I want to remind you,

         22  and I am not saying this, you know, by any way to

         23  cast dispersions on the One- Stop operators, but

         24  these very One- Stop operators were also the prime

         25  contractors for the Giuliani Administration on the
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          2  Employment ESP contracts.  And I would just ask you

          3  to step back and question, why that is being

          4  continued.  Everybody thought it was an unwise

          5  program, it is a program that HRA decided to

          6  discontinue why is it now being adopted by the Small

          7  Business Administration?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Well put, and

          9  challenging, in fact, the implications are so

         10  challenging that I defer the first question to my

         11  colleague, Council Member Vann.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Actually, I

         13  thought your presentation was very, very clear and

         14  does not require a lot of questions.  You made is

         15  clear that what we have been doing in New York,

         16  unlike Boston, is trying to work against, or work

         17  around, or not having a basis by which to demand.

         18  And what you are saying is you have got to have a

         19  policy, you know, and you have got to have the

         20  reporting, you have got to have the accountability,

         21  and so that tell us what has happened here.  I mean,

         22  until we get that, obviously, we have to do the

         23  things that we do.  But if you are serious about it,

         24  it is what I said, there is a will, there is a way.

         25  And the will in this will is this case is what you
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          2  said, a policy, the reporting, the whole

          3  accountability system, and then you can achieve the

          4  things you need to achieve in the crisis.

          5                 So I am clear on that, I do not

          6  really have any questions of you.  And I agree with

          7  you that if we are serious about that, we will put

          8  the resources where they are doing the work.  We do

          9  not have to create no big system.  I mean, One-

         10  Stop, I mean you do not want a referral system, a

         11  One- Stop should be where you can come and get

         12  everything you need saying, not coming in and I will

         13  tell you where to go.  And I agree with that, and we

         14  know there are CBOs doing the work, and there may be

         15  a need to bring all or some of them together in a

         16  certain area.  But clearly, I agree wholeheartedly

         17  with both the presentations, so I do not really have

         18  a question per se.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Council Member

         20  Seabrook.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

         22  very much, Mr. Chairman.  Just a short question and

         23  a statement.  The contract that you are saying that

         24  continues to be in existence that came out of the

         25  Giuliani Administration, are these contracts that
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          2  were actually bided upon, or no bid contracts?

          3                 MS. BIBERMAN:  These what were they

          4  called negotiated acquisitions, you know, in other

          5  words, they were not RFP contracts.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Oh, okay.

          7  Well that is kind,  that is part of the problem that

          8  we have been facing with the present Administration

          9  that have certainly been exclusive and excluding,

         10  and that is one of the problems.  And when the will

         11  to do and to provide opportunities, especially for

         12  African- Americans, that has not been the case, and

         13  it is a real problem.

         14                 Thank you.  And just to the Community

         15  Service Society, I certainly would like to extend a

         16  tremendous appreciation for what the Community

         17  Service Society has done the research and provided

         18  us with this material that really has been the

         19  catalyst for us to really cannonpole (phonetic) this

         20  issue to the forefront, and that we will continue

         21  the struggle.  And you should all be commended for

         22  the work that you have done and the research that

         23  you have provided.

         24                 MR. LEVITAN:  Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  There have been
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          2  several studies that have come out, and each one

          3  seems to be an overlay and seemingly giving a small

          4  of a picture, and the picture keeps getting worse.

          5  The 100 Blacks in Law Enforcement did a study on the

          6  Police Department, and well, it was not a pretty

          7  picture.  The Blacks In Government did a study on

          8  blacks in the entire government, and it was not a

          9  pretty picture.  We are adding that and putting

         10  another overlay with the CSS report, and the picture

         11  becomes more, becomes clearer, but the real question

         12  becomes at what point do we stop doing studies and

         13  start taking action on these things.

         14                 Now it would be unfair to say that

         15  the Mayor is doing nothing, not that I heard anyone

         16  in here say this.  It would be unfair to say that

         17  the Mayor is doing nothing on these issues. I

         18  believe that I have seen some movement especially in

         19  the Department of Business Services that I have

         20  never seen before.  I believe that we are not moving

         21  with the pace, and with the sense of crisis that

         22  this needs to be attacked.  I think that the

         23  traditional remedies will fall short, if we are

         24  truly interested in addressing that.

         25                 Let me, two different things were
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          2  raised that I want to speak about here.  One is a

          3  thing called CDBG, Community Development Block

          4  Grant.  Think of it, for those who do not know, as a

          5  large pot, I believe close to $5 billion or some

          6  variation of federal money that comes to New York

          7  City that is supposed to attack poverty.  We are

          8  very interested in this, and this Committee is

          9  letting everyone know in advance, we are looking

         10  into CDBG, we are looking into how it is used, how

         11  it is attacking the causes of poverty.  Now I do

         12  understand that the federal government allowed New

         13  York City to use CDBG to some degree to recover from

         14  9/11.  But I am here to say that if we can start

         15  talking about giving large tax rebates to

         16  homeowners, which I believe in, that the time for

         17  using CDBG, to paper in the debt of the City, is

         18  over.

         19                 So I just want to let all of my

         20  friends in government on both side of the aisle know

         21  that we are looking into this matter, and we will

         22  have a hearing on this issue.

         23                 Another issue, of course, came in on

         24  the hearing, rather the reporting requirements of

         25  what some people have, well, I will be nice, we have
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          2  seen it fit as a City to use some of our tax money

          3  to encourage growth by the large corporations.  We

          4  have seen fit to ensure that they stay in our City

          5  and do wondrous things.  And often this happens.

          6  Some people also have accused these policies of

          7  being corporate welfare.

          8                 To this Mayor's credit he has not

          9  done some blatant forms of corporate welfare, he has

         10  turned some of these things down, very surprising to

         11  some of us, and very hardening.  This Committee

         12  also, the Economic Development Committee also has

         13  all ready scheduled a hearing on this issue, because

         14  we want there to be complete transparency in

         15  reporting.  We want to know that if the City puts up

         16  a dollar towards labor, towards making sure that we

         17  have workers, that that dollar returns a fair value,

         18  that these businesses do not take this money and go

         19  overseas with it.  That we make sure that we are

         20  hiring the amount of people that we say that we are

         21  doing, or else we need to look at other policies

         22  which will return a better rate of return.  This

         23  City being the heart of Wall Street.  I am sure that

         24  they understand the rate of return, and we are very

         25  interested in these things happening.
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          2                 You spoke of the Boston policy, if

          3  you would be kind enough to send any and all

          4  information to my office, we certainly could use

          5  these things.  We are moving in this direction.

          6                 Without further ado, and since my

          7  colleagues have further statement to make, I want to

          8  thank both of you for being here, and for doing the

          9  good work.  I have known of what you have been doing

         10  for years, and we will speak on another day of

         11  business incubators, I am actually trying to create

         12  one.

         13                 Without further ado, thank you very

         14  much for the good work that you have done for New

         15  York City.

         16                 MS. BIBERMAN:  Thank you.  Chairman

         17  Sanders, if I may, on more thing?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Sure.

         19                 MS. BIBERMAN:  I think it is

         20  important, because we only heard from one agency

         21  today, we did not hear from HRA and DHS, and you

         22  know they do the lion's share of the contracting

         23  with community- based organizations for job

         24  training.  We have two of those contracts.  This

         25  agency that testified this morning, does not.  And
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          2  you should know that they do keep stats, there is a

          3  vendor stat program, and we are required, and we do

          4  report on when the people we train reach employment

          5  milestones, get the job, or on the job 30 days, 60

          6  days, 180 days.  Our feet are held to the fire, and

          7  frankly, it is okay with me that we are held to the

          8  fire.  That is our job, that is what we should do.

          9                 But it is important that you

         10  understand that that is not where, money is not

         11  being spent for people who are out of work, but who

         12  are not on public assistance or are homeless.  Okay,

         13  you either have to be a so- called special

         14  population, but with the regular unemployed, there

         15  is no, you know, contracted money.  And the ITAs

         16  that were spoken about this morning are a femoral,

         17  at best.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  I thank you

         19  very much for that.  It is true that there are

         20  others that need to be brought to the table, and

         21  perhaps at a follow- up we will have the pleasure of

         22  bringing these organizations and these agencies so

         23  that they can speak about what we are going to do

         24  about this crisis.

         25                 Allow me to bring in some more
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          2  voices, some that we have heard from before, some

          3  that are down right legendary.  Let me start with

          4  Jim Haughton from that organization that has been

          5  creating a fight back for a long time, the Harlem

          6  fight back.  And Euline Williams, Community Voices

          7  Heard, and David Kallick from the Fiscal Policy

          8  Institute.

          9                 Okay, Jim left, okay, he probably

         10  going to fight somewhere, fighting back somewhere.

         11                 Since we will use our time wisely,

         12  Ma'am, and since you are seated, why don't you

         13  begin.  When that light is off, it's on.  If you

         14  would identify yourself, Ma'am?

         15                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, my name is

         16  Euline Williams.  I am speaking today on behalf of

         17  Community Voices Heard.  Community Voices Heard is

         18  an organization of low- income people dedicated to

         19  organizing around issues of job training, education,

         20  and employment.  Today, I want to speak about

         21  lessons that we have learned regarding transitional

         22  jobs programs in New York City. Along with my

         23  testimony, we will be submitting copies of our

         24  recently released report, "Wages Work."  An

         25  examination of New York City's Parks Opportunity
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          2  Program and its participants.

          3                 We believe that lessons learned

          4  through our research can help guide the Council and

          5  City agencies in creating good transitional

          6  employment programs for unemployed New Yorkers.  The

          7  creation of the Parks Opportunity Program in New

          8  York City in the spring in 2001 was commendable.

          9  The shift that the Human Resources Administration

         10  made away from unpaid workfare and toward paid

         11  employment was a positive one for the City and for

         12  Welfare recipients.  The City got a large- scale

         13  workforce and program participants got real work

         14  experience.  Participants received job titles,

         15  performed critical tasks, worked with supervisors,

         16  received union benefits, and most importantly earned

         17  a paycheck.

         18                 The only problem was not everyone got

         19  employment afterwards.  What was missing?  It was

         20  inadequate case management, limited excess to

         21  education and training, and poor job placement

         22  services, the program fell short of providing the

         23  comprehensive package that has made other

         24  transitional jobs program successful.

         25                 We would like for the Council to look
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          2  at our report and use the currently existing

          3  transitional jobs program as a base to build to make

          4  an effective program that would benefit everyone

          5  involved.  The City could benefit from an increased

          6  workforce, and participants could benefit from

          7  having real jobs.  We, ourselves, have been working

          8  with LCAN to encourage the LMDC to invest funds in

          9  the creation of the Liberty Jobs Program.

         10                 We believe that wages work across the

         11  board for everyone concerned.  Paid transitional

         12  jobs transform Welfare recipients and unemployed New

         13  Yorkers into wage earning, tax paying New Yorkers

         14  that are contributing to the advancement of New York

         15  City.

         16                 Thank you for your time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

         18  much, Ma'am. Sir, would you be kind enough?

         19                 MR. KALLICK:  I am David Kallick from

         20  the Fiscal Policy Institute, and I have been working

         21  with the Labor Community Advocacy Network on this

         22  job creation program for two and a half years.  So

         23  thank you for inviting me to testify today.

         24                 I do not need to tell you that we

         25  have an employment crisis in New York.  We have lost
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          2  220,000 jobs since the peak of the expansion in

          3  January 2001, and an estimated 80 to 100 thousand

          4  jobs specifically because of the fact of September

          5  11th.  In poll after poll and forum after forum, the

          6  problem that stands out clearly is jobs, especially

          7  for low- income New Yorkers and people of color, for

          8  communities that have not shared in the benefits of

          9  the expansion.  And Mark, I think, did a very good

         10  job of saying, you know this has been a problem even

         11  in the times when the economy was growing in New

         12  York, it is even more of a problem, of course, as we

         13  have down turn.  But these are top concerns for

         14  people throughout the City.

         15                 This is what is shocking to me, we

         16  have monies to address this problem.  We have over a

         17  billion dollars still left in CDGB funds at the

         18  Lower Manhattan Development Corporation.  This was

         19  money that was intended by the federal government,

         20  by Congress for specifically above and beyond other

         21  rebuilding aspects, specifically for economic

         22  revitalization.  We have hold in the economy, it is

         23  a job hold, the real estate economy, as you know,

         24  has been doing fairly well, but this is not the case

         25  for impact in the labor market.
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          2                 The money is under the control of the

          3  Lower Manhattan Development Corporation Board.  And

          4  the Board has appointees by both the Governor and

          5  the Mayor.  I would urge the City Council to take a

          6  very active role in these Resolutions before you to

          7  say to the LMDC that you are watching carefully,

          8  that you care about how this gets spent.  And to

          9  urge the Mayor not to walk away from the Lower

         10  Manhattan Development and trade it for some kind of

         11  development in the West Side.

         12                 Unfortunately,  the way the money,

         13  this money has been sitting there for quite a long

         14  time now.  It is actually somewhat astonishing to me

         15  that there is still over a billion dollars there

         16  given that it was supposed to be emergency

         17  revitalization money.  And the Governor seems

         18  determined to use this as the first piece of funding

         19  for the JFK and Long Island Railroad Rail Link.  At

         20  a time when the economy has still hardly begun to

         21  recover from the devastating impacts of 9/11, these

         22  CDGB funds, which normally support economic

         23  development and affordable housing in low- income

         24  communities, should not go to the pet project of the

         25  Downtown Real Estate Industry.
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          2                 As you will see from the attached

          3  results of the public forum, this is the public

          4  forum we held on March 16th, and I will give you the

          5  summary of it.  People are very clear about what

          6  they think the money should be spent.  And this was

          7  the first time that people were asked not just to

          8  express broad priorities, but to actually take, we

          9  gave people coins of $100 million each and said, you

         10  know, if you had to spend the money, how would you

         11  do it? Only six percent of the money went to the

         12  tunnel, over 40 percent went to affordable housing,

         13  and the rest of the money was spread through Local

         14  Economic Development, Arts and Culture, community

         15  facilities and services, thing that would create

         16  jobs for people in all of our neighborhoods, and

         17  would begin to address the crisis for the people of

         18  color and local people in New York City.

         19                 I think that this is also a kind of

         20  long- term development strategy that makes sense for

         21  the City.  This kind of development would create

         22  jobs today, it would also begin to create a

         23  different kind of economy in another 10 or 20 years.

         24     By contrast, the Rail Link is primarily about

         25  getting suburban people into the City to get jobs in
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          2  tall office towers in the financial districts.  You

          3  know what kind of development that implies and who

          4  gets those kind of jobs.  If you start to have parks

          5  development, and public spaces, and arts and

          6  culture, and business incubators, and community

          7  services, as the basis for your economic strategy  I

          8  think you see both a very different kind of

          9  development in the City.

         10                 After sitting on the fronts for over

         11  two years, this is the moment when the LMDC finally

         12  seems prepared to act.  Within a few weeks we are

         13  told that the plans for the tunnel would be released

         14  together with the financing plan, which is the huge

         15  missing piece so far, that they have not talked

         16  about how they are going to fund this.  And it would

         17  be a huge misstep in the course of economic

         18  development for the City, and a travesty for low-

         19  income New Yorkers, if the bulk of that money gets

         20  sucked into a tunnel.

         21                 So let me also say, well, I will say

         22  three things. I think there are three ways that this

         23  redevelopment effort could be used to address the

         24  jobs crisis, in particular, for low- income

         25  communities and communities of color.  Direct job
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          2  creation is, obviously, one them, in my opinion.

          3  Wage standards, you could make sure that whatever

          4  money gets spent from the public funding has decent

          5  standards living, but it is really more like a

          6  living wage, and less like a minimum wage.  And then

          7  I think you have talked quite a lot today about

          8  hiring local and fair hiring, and I think that is

          9  also very important.

         10                 I cannot let pass a little bit of a

         11  response to Commissioner Walsh in his response to

         12  Council Member Perkins' question about whether the

         13  Administration has sat down at the highest levels

         14  and decided that this is, you know, that the crisis

         15  in unemployment and black unemployment is really a

         16  priority for the City.  In our private meetings with

         17  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff, he has said specifically

         18  that that is not the case.  He told us that this

         19  was, that the downturn was not as bad as it was in

         20  the seventies, and he told us that the economy would

         21  eventually come back, but there is not very much

         22  that he sees that he can do about that, and that the

         23  long- term economic effects were primarily going to

         24  be driven by the real estate development, that would

         25  then, in some ways, trickle down to be an advantage
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          2  to other people.

          3                 I would say that there is not very

          4  much evidence that that was the case in the 1990s, I

          5  think that did not happen. And I think you need to

          6  have a crafted policy to make sure that it really is

          7  a widely short benefit to people throughout all of

          8  New York, and just to specific people in

          9  neighborhoods.

         10                 So thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

         12  much, Sir.  Let me, the Council is very, very aware

         13  of the LMDC, the Lower Manhattan Development

         14  Corporation, and I, at the risk of being too

         15  forward, I will say that the Council is not happy at

         16  how things are going in Lower Manhattan.  The

         17  Council has been purposefully shut out of this

         18  development that has taken place here, to the

         19  detrimental of New York City.  The Lower Manhattan

         20  Development Corporation is, of course, a State

         21  chartered body, a State created entity, which have

         22  been joined by elements of the City government, the

         23  Mayor's Office.

         24                 I will remind us all of a little bit

         25  of history.  My Committee made a call long ago
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          2  speaking of that the City Council should be in, and

          3  pointing out, at that time, that of their great body

          4  that they had, they had two so- called minorities,

          5  or people of color, out of I think, there were 20

          6  people at the time.  It keeps moving and changing.

          7  And we pointed out that there were only two people

          8  of color, and we also pointed out that most of those

          9  people that they had on at that time, were not even

         10  New York City residents.  So we have been watching

         11  this situation for a long time, and have not been

         12  very happy.

         13                 We do understand that they have a

         14  jurisdiction over 16 acres.  We also understand that

         15  if they move one inch out of those 16 acres, they

         16  will have to speak to the City Council.  We

         17  understand that they cannot redo New York City, or

         18  Lower Manhattan, on just those 16 acres.  So we are

         19  waiting for the day when they have to go beyond

         20  those 16 acres.

         21                 I have said to the Lower Manhattan

         22  Development Corporation, as I have said to anyone

         23  who would listen, wouldn't it be better if we start

         24  with a good conversation now?  Wouldn't it be better

         25  to start with dialogue rather than making the
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          2  Council have to act in a certain fashion?  Wouldn't

          3  it be better to bring everyone in now so that we can

          4  start as colleagues on this?  Those calls and cries

          5  have not been answered.  So therefore, they will go

          6  one inch out of their 16 acres, and on that day, it

          7  will be a whole different ball game with a different

          8  set of rules here, and we are waiting.

          9                 MR. KALLICK:  Can speak on that?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Sir.

         11                 MR. KALLICK:  I would encourage you

         12  to think that this is a very good time to begin that

         13  actually.   LMDC now has a proposal before the

         14  public to acquire the Deutsche Bank site, which is

         15  outside those 16 acres.  And right on the agenda

         16  coming up very soon is going to be the development

         17  around Fulton Street, which we have heard rumors of

         18  eminent domain, we have heard talk about all kinds

         19  of zoning issues that I think the City Council would

         20  be, you know, appropriately involved in.

         21                 I would also say the Mayor brought

         22  this the LMDC's attention through the City Planning

         23  Commission having a hearing very clearly laying out

         24  its jurisdiction around the Deutsche Bank site,

         25  which also involves in the security and truck entry
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          2  issues for the site that are key practical issues

          3  for the LMDC.

          4                 I was heartened by the idea that the

          5  Mayor was going to step up and make it clear where

          6  this jurisdiction lay.  I was then frustrated to

          7  read soon afterwards in the newspapers that the

          8  Mayor was trading off the Lower Manhattan

          9  Development for the West Side, and it seems like he

         10  was just using this for a leverage on West Side

         11  Development.  So I would urge you to say, you have

         12  heard it from several people today, there needs to

         13  be a comprehensive, citywide development strategy,

         14  and just one person gets to call the shots in one

         15  area, and another person in another area.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Well put, Sir,

         17  we certainly share those views as we will continue

         18  this dialogue.  As we will also read Community

         19  Voices Heard.  The good work that you good folks are

         20  doing up in the Bronx and all over the City is

         21  nothing short of amazing with a few dollars and a

         22  lot of determination, you have done New York City

         23  well.

         24                 If there is no statement from you,

         25  then I want to thank both of you very much for being
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          2  here and making these presentations.

          3                 Allow me to call David Fisher from

          4  the Center for an Urban Future, and Margaret Fix, I

          5  stand corrected, from the New York City Employment

          6  and Training Coalition.  Margaret since you got

          7  their first, you are the firstest (sic) with the

          8  mostest (sic), than why don't you identify yourself

          9  for the record and make your presentation.

         10                 MS. FIX:  First, I want to begin by

         11  thanking you for convening this hearing.  I think in

         12  all my years in government, outside of it, I have

         13  never seen this kind of pointed, passionate response

         14  to what is one of the most serious issues, if not

         15  the most serious issue facing the City.  So we at

         16  the New York City Employment and Training Coalition

         17  are tremendously appreciative. And we hope this

         18  pressures some focus attention for a period of time

         19  that really, seriously addresses what has been a

         20  chronic problem in New York.

         21                 Just to give you a little background

         22  the Coalition is a coalition of 180 organizations

         23  throughout New York City that provides important

         24  training and employment services, mostly to low

         25  income folks.  As a matter of fact, WHEDCO, Nancy
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          2  Biberman, who you heard from earlier is one of our

          3  members.

          4                 I am going to skip a lot of the

          5  points I was going to raise, because I think they

          6  have been raised articulately all ready.  I do want

          7  to support what has all ready been said about the

          8  fact that these problems are not going to be solved

          9  by the Economic Development Plans that the City has

         10  proposed to embark on alone. Those plans are not

         11  focused toward employment of New York City

         12  residents.  They may result in some ancillary

         13  benefits to some New York City residents.  But

         14  unless we have a strategic plan that really targets

         15  the specific employment needs of our residents,

         16  these plans will probably not bear that kind of

         17  fruit.  And although I think there is burgeoning

         18  awareness that the Department of Small Business

         19  Services that that needs to happen.  It has not

         20  translated yet, into clear policies that are going

         21  to make that happen.

         22                 And just to highlight where we are

         23  at, New York City now has a labor participation rate

         24  of only 57 percent.  So while we have a crisis in

         25  African- American unemployment, that is a crisis
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          2  that falls within, crosses many, many populations,

          3  and among other major cities, it is about 10 percent

          4  lower than that of other cities.  And what that also

          5  translates into is vastly different employment

          6  rates.  I mean we had an unemployment rate of 8

          7  percent, and I have the February BLS reports, I will

          8  just suffice it to say that Los Angeles, Chicago,

          9  every other major City and cities with demographics

         10  that are similar to New York has much lower

         11  unemployment rates.  So this also indicates that we

         12  have a structural issue here that we need a

         13  comprehensive strategy to look at, and we also need

         14  to be looking at some of those other cities to see

         15  why their rates are so much lower than ours, and

         16  what they are doing is different from ours.

         17                 I am not certain that first source

         18  agreements are the answer.  At the coalition, we

         19  have actually looked at 34 cities that have adopted

         20  first source agreements.  And I will just summarize

         21  briefly, what we found is that they often devolve

         22  into window dressing.  And you know there is a press

         23  conference, and there are reporting requirements,

         24  but unless those reporting requirements have

         25  staffing behind that actually is really looking at

                                                            146

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  what happened with the development five years out

          3  after it is all ready developed, that are not going

          4  to result in measurable jobs for the people they

          5  were meant to help.

          6                 So I think what is necessary is

          7  really a rethinking of how economic development

          8  efforts work, and a refocusing on the City's

          9  economic development efforts so that they are

         10  actually focused translating into jobs for the

         11  people they are meant to. And when we look at

         12  resources, I think we are often focused on how few

         13  resources we have.  But last year, $900 million in

         14  financing and tax subsidies went to IDA projects.

         15  So if there were some way of reshaping of how that

         16  money is spent, that is a substantial source of

         17  money and could result in major job growth.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  If I can give

         19  you 30 more seconds, forgive me.

         20                 MS. FIX:  Are my two minutes up?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Oh, your four

         22  minutes are up.

         23                 MS. FIX:  All right, I just want to

         24  say one thing about the One- Stop system, vouchers,

         25  and training, in general. What you heard today, was
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          2  that we will be giving out 4,000 vouchers over the

          3  next year at a value of $2,500 each.  I think we all

          4  know that we have a much bigger need for training

          5  than can be provided through 4,000 vouchers.  And

          6  the problem, it is a big problem, we have very

          7  limited Workforce Investment Act Fund, we could try

          8  and squeeze a few more perhaps out of the

          9  Department.  But unless we actually identify

         10  additional funding streams for training and

         11  employment, we are not going to do much better than,

         12  and that is something that the City Council needs to

         13  focus on, is identifying additional sources of

         14  funding for training so that we can actually provide

         15  the skills that people need to compete for the jobs

         16  that are being created.

         17                 The supply side of workers is just as

         18  important to address as job creation.  And on the

         19  affiliated system, this is absolutely critical, and

         20  I think the City Council needs to hold the SBS's

         21  feet to the fire on developing an affiliate system

         22  that actually works on creating access points for

         23  low- income people, people who really need jobs to

         24  find them.

         25                 And Council Member Vann had a good
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          2  proposal in terms of identifying the areas with the

          3  greatest need, and the City Council should look at

          4  how One- Stop affiliate system can be addressed, it

          5  is actually located in those areas.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Let us continue

          7  this dialogue on another day.  If you would get in

          8  touch with my office, we can continue this dialogue.

          9                 Sir, without further ado.

         10                 MR. FISHER:  I am David Fisher.  I am

         11  the Project Director for Workforce Development at

         12  the Center for an Urban Future.  We are a non-

         13  partisan, public policy research group based just a

         14  few blocks from here at 120 Wall Street, and we

         15  focus on economic development and workforce

         16  development.  I want to commend the Committees for

         17  holding this important hearing today, on an issue

         18  that has really passed under the radar this year,

         19  and also, to compliment the Community Service

         20  Society and Mark Levitan from bringing this into

         21  focus, and pointing out that employment losses among

         22  New York City's African- American population through

         23  the recent economic downturn are really

         24  qualitatively different than what has been the case

         25  in past recessions.
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          2                 Job loss, over the past several, has

          3  differ from previous downturns.  Two federal reserve

          4  bank economists, Eric Groshen and Simon Potter

          5  released a short study last year that noted that the

          6  job was recovery is largely explained by structural

          7  changes in the workforce, and that is true both

          8  locally and nationally.  Groshen and Potter cite the

          9  predominance of permanent job losses over temporary

         10  layoffs and the relocation of jobs from one industry

         11  to another.  And they go on, the data suggests that

         12  most of the jobs added during the recovery have been

         13  new positions in different firms and industries, not

         14  rehires.  In other words, jobs have been created and

         15  destroyed, rather than lost and regained.

         16                 What this means for African- American

         17  unemployment is that if positions erased through the

         18  downturn were disproportionately filled by black New

         19  Yorkers, who for a variety of reasons have not

         20  migrated over into these new positions created

         21  elsewhere, that indicates a much more serious need

         22  for intervention, than if we could simply chuck up

         23  the job losses to the vagaries of the business

         24  cycle.  There is some anecdotal evidence that this

         25  has, in fact, been the case, but this is one area
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          2  among many where I think we need more data.

          3                 I am going to skip a little bit here

          4  owning to time constraints.  In a broad sense, we

          5  can make progress towards solving this problem by

          6  improving educational opportunities in all the poor

          7  communities of the City, and by forging greater

          8  connections between employers in those communities,

          9  and it was encouraging to here Commission Walsh

         10  talking about getting the word out into communities

         11  through affiliates and through the various economic

         12  development entities, LDC's Business Improvement

         13  Districts.

         14                 Post Secondary Education also has a

         15  huge role to play here.  The Center for an Urban

         16  Future just released a report detailing how the City

         17  University of New York has taken on a larger role in

         18  workforce development, offering a range of programs

         19  in adult and continuing education and publicly

         20  provided Welfare- to Work training.  And again, the

         21  fact that the Commissioner referenced CUNY's role, I

         22  think really sends the message that these are under-

         23  utilized assets that have credibility both in City

         24  neighborhoods and in the business community.  But

         25  the problem of lagging employment in minority and
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          2  low- income communities is too large to be solved by

          3  any handful of public or private sector initiative

          4  working in isolation.

          5                 Council Member Clarke, this morning,

          6  sort of expressed a note of sympathy with the

          7  Commissioner, I think, she said this, in a way, this

          8  is too big for your agency alone, and I think she is

          9  right.  We do need to bring in HRA, we need to bring

         10  in the Department of Education, other city agencies.

         11    This is just not a workforce issue, it is an

         12  economic development issue, it is a community

         13  development issue, it is an education issue.  And to

         14  address it effectively it will require government

         15  and community leaders in all these fields to

         16  transcend turfs and collaborate in new way.

         17                 This is easy to say, and it is very

         18  hard to do.  We released a report last year

         19  detailing how just in workforce development there

         20  are 29 different funding streams, and a plethora of

         21  federal, state, and city agencies dividing

         22  authority, but failing to coordinate resources or

         23  even share information.  As the Commissioner pointed

         24  out, we need to hold provides accountable for their

         25  job placement results, and Nancy Biberman alluded to
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          2  that as well.  We also must demand that government

          3  agencies are held accountable for coordinating their

          4  resources and doing what they need to do.

          5                 I would just like to close, --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  If you, okay, I

          7  like that word, go ahead.

          8                 MR. FISHER:  There we go.  By briefly

          9  commenting on the proposed actions at the end of

         10  Mark's paper, a couple of them.

         11                 Transitional employment through wage

         12  subsidy is definitely worth pursuing on a trial

         13  basis, and possibly along the lines of the effort

         14  led by the consortium for worker education in Seedco

         15  following September 11th.  That utilized partial

         16  wage subsidies to save jobs and small businesses

         17  located in Downtown and in other impacted

         18  communities.  Attaching a skills development

         19  component to that would be helpful arguably of equal

         20  or more value to be perform a skills assessment for

         21  participants, and then use the opportunity of

         22  temporary or transitional work to attach them to the

         23  City workforce system on a more permanent basis.

         24  This also has the killing two birds with one stone,

         25  advantage of getting some of those marketing
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          2  concerns, the different speakers have mentioned

          3  today.

          4                 The TANF assessment program conducted

          5  by several CUNY campuses, one praised from City and

          6  University officials, unfortunately, it was shut

          7  down last year owing to budget constraints.  And

          8  Council Member James this morning mentioned

          9  collaboration with labor to affirmatively hire for

         10  infrastructure projects, we have talked about that

         11  some more this afternoon.

         12                 I think that you will find a

         13  receptive hearing on the part of some of the trades.

         14    The Center released a report, which I author last

         15  year, titled, "Labor Gains," which talked about

         16  labor supported workforce efforts.  One of the

         17  programs we have profiled in that report was

         18  something called, Construction Skills 2000, which

         19  has looked into minority communities and bring young

         20  people into the building trade.

         21                 The findings of the CSS study point

         22  toward a foreboding trend in New York's economy.

         23  The bifurcation of the labor market into high paying

         24  jobs for those with skills and credentials at the

         25  high end, and a scuffle at the low end of the
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          2  service economy for most everybody else.  It will

          3  take real leadership and sustain public attention to

          4  attack this problem, and I commend City Council for

          5  shining a spotlight on it today.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you, Sir.

          8    Council Member Seabrook.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

         10  very much, Mr. Chairman.  Just a question that

         11  perhaps you can enlighten me.  One of the biggest

         12  problems that we have had, has been the trades.  And

         13  I think there has to be an honest discussion with

         14  the trades as it relates to how they are going to

         15  allow participation.  We have seen, in the last few

         16  days, that the trades have been captured by

         17  organized crime, including their own trade unions.

         18  So we had the trades operating down the block, and

         19  they decided who worked.  And African- American

         20  males was really like a non- existent workforce with

         21  the clean- up operation.  And the trades were there,

         22  and organized crime too.  But the trades never

         23  worked.

         24                 And so I think there has to be a real

         25  discussion with the trades around this issue, an
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          2  open and honest discussion about, do you care about

          3  membership and the paying of dues, or do you care

          4  about the complexion of who has membership and pay

          5  dues? And that, and when we can reach that level of

          6  honesty, then we can solve a lot of the problems

          7  that causes unemployment.

          8                 I understand about the apprenticeship

          9  and everything else.  But one of the things that we

         10  found out, if it is not in the statute, there is no

         11  abiding by.  And so I think that the trades have to

         12  have a real honest sit down, and we did that with

         13  the trades when we did the School Construction

         14  Authority, and said that there had to be an honest

         15  discussion about people participating. And that is

         16  why the model of what the City could follow in the

         17  School Construction Authority, in terms of its

         18  participation, and a minority contract, its vendors

         19  and everyone else participating.

         20                 But I think, you know, I like to have

         21  seen the trades here, today.

         22                 MR. FISHER:  Yes, I would too, I as a

         23  little disappointed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Let me just

         25  throw in, I did see Ed Ott earlier from the Central
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          2  Labor Council, but as a point of information, my

          3  friends, I am sure that Councilman Seabrook was

          4  saying that some trades have been captured by the

          5  organized crime.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Yes, no,

          7  no, some, some, some.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  And that he, of

          9  course, was not saying that all of the trade unions

         10  have been captured by, but too many, one is too

         11  many.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  They did

         13  two jobs down at the World Trade.  They did work

         14  down at World Trade.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Without a

         16  doubt.  You wanted to respond.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  But I am

         18  just saying that, you know, they had jobs, and we

         19  did not have jobs.  And it was again those contracts

         20  that were not bided on at all.  They were fast

         21  track, sole source, five billion dollars.  And if we

         22  are going to play fair, I do not have a problem if

         23  the mud whitewater (sic) work, but black people want

         24  to work too.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Well I think I
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          2  will move from that, and let you respond.

          3                 MS. FIX:  There is a statute on the

          4  books, it is referred to as Executive Order 50 that

          5  requires, and you may be aware of this all ready,

          6  that requires the setting aside of construction

          7  trainee jobs in a ratio of 1:4 for all City- funded

          8  construction projects over 50,000 by organized by

          9  major trade.  And the statute was challenged in the

         10  courts and the courts withheld the challenge.  And I

         11  understand that there are some issues with the

         12  statute that have led the City to be left unstrigent

         13  in its enforcement.  And it may be something that

         14  the Council should be looking into, is to, if there

         15  are problems with this law, how can we make it work.

         16    But it is a starting point for looking at how to

         17  get more minorities into construction trade.

         18                 MR. FISHER:  I just want to add real

         19  quickly, Council Member Seabrook, I think your

         20  concerns are valid.  Ed Ott from the Central Labor

         21  Council was here earlier today, and I know, Ed and

         22  other labor leaders that I have spoken to have a

         23  real commitment to addressing the issues that you

         24  bring up.  And I think it would be fruitful to

         25  really pursue it with them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Well put.

          3  Council Member Seabrook, I would be remiss if I did

          4  not say that there are some quite discussions taking

          5  place over this very issue.  My office has convened

          6  several of these, and we are getting closer to it.

          7                 Let me state for anyone who did not

          8  see this before, my friends,  this is not our great

          9  granddaddy City Council, this is a whole different,

         10  very activist City Council that is not going to, you

         11  know, march in goose step to whichever person

         12  decides that, you know, silence is golden.  We will,

         13  we have been speaking out on different issues, we

         14  will speak out on different issues.  But we also go

         15  beyond speaking, and this is budget time, meaning

         16  that we can act.  And when I hear of policies that

         17  amount to a rise and tide lifting all boats, and I

         18  understand that economic policy, you know, I

         19  understand a little of these things, I am a country

         20  guy, but I can understand a little.  A rise in tide,

         21  lifting all boats, it is a nice concept, it sounds

         22  good, but it sounds a lot like that trickle down

         23  economics that I was seeing under Reagan, and I did

         24  not get mine then, and it did not seem to happen.

         25  Oh, it happened for some, but it did not happen for
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          2  all, so it is going to be a very hard sell, but if

          3  this Administration that this is a way to go about

          4  things.

          5                 Having said that, I think that my

          6  colleague, Council Member Seabrook has spoken quite

          7  forcefully on many issues, in fact, I am even too

          8  scared to go further than that.

          9                 So I will thank both of you for being

         10  here this afternoon.  And this conversation will be

         11  continued, we are not through with this issue.  We

         12  will bring every single soul that we need to have

         13  before these Committees until they understand that

         14  we hear voices, the City Council hears, Voices Heard

         15  perhaps, and we hear voices of people who are

         16  unemployed, voices of those who have been shut out.

         17  And you know, some may say that we may be radical or

         18  far less, and to that I will have to say to the

         19  corporate community, that Fanny Lou Haymer was

         20  called far less in her day, and she said, it is

         21  true, that she was.  That she was a voice of those

         22  left so far out of development, that catching up was

         23  a joke. So she took that position, and I believe

         24  that we will take a similar one.

         25                 Having said that, let us continue

                                                            160

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  this dialogue. Your information that you give is

          3  useful.  These are the weapons that we use in this

          4  battle, this too gentile battle that we fight that

          5  has real consequences for what is happening.

          6                 Let us call some more people.  We

          7  have more voices that we need to hear this

          8  afternoon.  I am going to call a bunch of names, and

          9  I am going to really mess your name up something

         10  awful, you know, pretend that I did not mess it up,

         11  and we can get through this.  I believe that I have

         12  Tirza Barnes up here, I know I have Dessie Andrews

         13  here, and John Derek --

         14                 MR. NORVELL:  Norvell.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you, save

         16  me from myself, Sir, save me from myself.  And we

         17  are going to get everybody in here.  And since Ms.

         18  Barnes got there first, and has it together, in a

         19  moment or two, I am going to let her start.  And I

         20  know we gentlemen are going to be quiet, and those

         21  leaving are going to be very quiet and do all of

         22  those good things.

         23                 Ms. Barnes, without further ado.

         24                 MS. BARNES:  Good afternoon.  My name

         25  is Tirza Barnes, and I am here to represent the
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          2  State University of New York, Brooklyn Educational

          3  Opportunity Center, Bridge Program.  The purpose of

          4  the Bridge Program is to supply unemployed or under

          5  employed individuals with job training and job

          6  placement.  We have been in existence for over 11

          7  years, and we are located in the heart of Downtown

          8  Brooklyn, 11 Livingston Street.  We have

          9  successfully placed in most recent over 500

         10  individuals in jobs. In addition to training and

         11  placement, one of our key roles is emotional support

         12  via our case managers and our job developers.

         13                 We have learned through our

         14  experience that black males deal with problems of

         15  poverty, racism, crime, mental illness, and limited

         16  education.  And what we are learning that is most

         17  recent and most interesting, - -  May I continue?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  By all means,

         19  you must.

         20                 MS. BARNES:  Thank you.  What we are

         21  learning is that some of the black males in our

         22  program have actually discussed with our case

         23  managers, committing suicide, that is how serious

         24  this issue of unemployment for black males is.

         25                 Being unemployed for a year or more,
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          2  they are at the point where they are ready to give

          3  up.  Realizing the seriousness of this, and of these

          4  statements, we had to make community referrals to

          5  mental health agencies.  However, those who are able

          6  to cope with the pressure, with the help with a

          7  guide or a life coach at our program, we are able to

          8  supply them with training that gives them skills,

          9  and communication, time management, life skills,

         10  personal life skills, resume development

         11  interviewing skills, dress for successful skills,

         12  and job search assistance.  These skills help them

         13  to gain employment successfully.  Therefore,

         14  boosting their self- esteem, giving them confidence

         15  to go out in society and be productive.

         16                 Once they gain employment, there is a

         17  process that we at the Bridge Program have

         18  incorporated called post- employment services.  We

         19  believe that after you gain employment, we still

         20  need to be in touch with these black men.  We need

         21  to be with them to see how they are doing at their

         22  job.  Are they doing well, are they handling the

         23  pressure, balancing family, balancing a new job,

         24  maybe dealing with a challenging supervisor or

         25  challenging co- workers. We invite them to come back
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          2  to our program, and there that is when we do

          3  interactive workshops with them, giving them

          4  solutions on how they can handle the challenges they

          5  come across.

          6                 We celebrate their successes, we meet

          7  them at their job, we take them out to lunch to find

          8  out how they are doing.  We also have, actually, a

          9  large celebration and graduation at the institution

         10  the BEOC, just to let them know that we acknowledge

         11  their success, we know what they are doing, and we

         12  encourage them and motivate them to continue the

         13  good work.

         14                 This model has worked for 11 years.

         15  We are the solution to this negative situation that

         16  is happening with not only black males, but black

         17  females.  We encourage you to find out more about

         18  our program, so that we can be solution.  We are

         19  here, we are located in the heart of Downtown

         20  Brooklyn, and we have the jobs, we have the staff,

         21  and we can make a difference.

         22                 All you have to be, the requirement

         23  is a parent with a child under the age of 18- years-

         24  old, and be willing and ready to work.  It does not

         25  matter if you have a GED, or a Ph.D., we can service
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          2  you.

          3                 Thank you for your time.  My name is

          4  Ms. Barnes, and I have packages I would like to give

          5  to you so you can review more about our program.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you very

          8  much.   Let's see, I think that you sat down second,

          9  Sir, so I will let you begin.

         10                 MR. NORVELL:  Hello, my name is John

         11  Derek Norvell, and I am a Ph.D. Candidate at the

         12  City University Graduate Center. I am also part of

         13  the public housing group with the trades, which is a

         14  consortium of Public Housing and also some of the

         15  people you mentioned in the labor communities,

         16  trying to work to enforce Section 3 in Public

         17  Housing, which is just a great day, we have been

         18  fighting with Hernandez for about a couple years

         19  now, and it is still screaming and kicking and

         20  trying to get together an apprenticeship program,

         21  pre- apprenticeship program for Public Housing.

         22                 And what I want to talk about is the

         23  sham about City University being a liberal

         24  institution, an institution that is not involved in

         25  racism at all.  It is one of the most racist
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          2  institutions that I have ever been in.  I am

          3  finished my Ph.D. And I almost came to the point of

          4  giving up, or saying what is the point, or if I do

          5  finish I will go with the rest of my friends, the

          6  few black friends that are at the graduate center

          7  who are shift elsewhere, Wyoming, California,

          8  anywhere but in New York to teach New Yorkers,

          9  particularly black New Yorkers.

         10                 Throughout my whole experience I can

         11  count on my fingers any black male professors in

         12  City University, and I was part of the CUNY BA

         13  Program, which I traveled to different colleges, my

         14  main college being City College, and its rampant

         15  racism.  In fact, the black male professors that I

         16  remember, were all ready renowned people in their

         17  own independent field that were brought over because

         18  they were famous, like John Lewis, for instance, or

         19  Donald Byrd, who had a terrible experience at Queens

         20  College, and he just saw how terrible it was, and he

         21  left.

         22                 I am in the area of music, by the

         23  way, and you would think, not throwing my

         24  stereotypes, but you would think that there would be

         25  a lot of African- American professors in music.
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          2  There are hardly any, even teachers teaching about

          3  the music of the African Continent are white, except

          4  for one professor, Professor Hampton in Hunter

          5  College.  And Latin music is the same thing, it is a

          6  great struggle for Latino teachers to teach Latin

          7  music.  And I am even looking at, and it has a

          8  terrible impact on cultural issues.

          9                 Doing my own work and my own

         10  research, I was looking for, I also have to do a

         11  composition, so I was looking for, teachers I can

         12  study with, black teachers with composition and

         13  looking at all the different forms.  I had to

         14  practically teach myself in many ways, because there

         15  were no black professors there, not even in Jazz.

         16  We had one professor, in fact, in the cultural

         17  areas, because I was also doing work on a history of

         18  African American music, and I found some fascinating

         19  things on history music in New York, and its origins

         20  of a holiday was called pinkster, which was called

         21  the original black celebration of all celebrations

         22  in the American Continent, thinking about the 16/26

         23  with the 11 Angolas (phonetic).

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Sir, Sir, you

         25  would be kind enough to, sadly, to take 30 more

                                                            167

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  seconds.

          3                 MR. NORVELL:  Yes, I know, I know.

          4  But I just want to illustrate two examples of what

          5  happened at City University. The whole program of

          6  the College Assistance that would be there to help

          7  young black males along in college, they are

          8  supposed to be civil service examination for that.

          9  It was totally flawed.  I never saw more racist

         10  actions in that Black people actually were excluded.

         11                 What we found out was that the

         12  examinations and the interviews that were given were

         13  just to keep the people who had already been hired

         14  without the examinations to keep them in their jobs

         15  because they were violating EOC regulation.  And so,

         16  we even had disabled black people who applied for

         17  jobs, even at the Medgar Evers, they were refused

         18  for whites who already had their jobs. And the other

         19  thing, at City University, is that - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  That last

         21  thing, Sir.

         22                 MR. NORVELL: - -  saying about hiring

         23  in which they have these categories.  The Italians

         24  have also to the categories as people of color, so

         25  you have your Italians, against blacks, against the
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          2  Latinos, against Asians, against women.  And so what

          3  they do, is they kill two birds with one stone, and

          4  say, oh, we have got to hire some Latinos, some

          5  blacks, and women, so we will just hire black,

          6  Latino women or Latino women, or Italian women in

          7  that, and when that happens, you kill several birds

          8  with one stone, and men are still left out of the

          9  picture, and very, very on a low status.

         10                 Finally, in terms of even teaching

         11  and stuff, they do not open up any opportunity for

         12  black males to actually get the teaching experience,

         13  particularly in the Ph.D. Programs, you know, in all

         14  the different universities.  Somebody asked me at

         15  Hunter, wow, we have not seen you before, why don't

         16  you teach us?  I said, why don't you request me?

         17  And so we don't even have that, we don't even have

         18  those things in place.

         19                 And I mean, I can go on and on and

         20  on.  What I want to finally say is that - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Sir, I ask that

         22  you make your statement.

         23                 MR. NORVELL:  Final statement, is

         24  accountability. There is no accountability with

         25  interviews, none at whatsoever.
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          2  And what there needs to be is something that was in

          3  history a long time ago, the eyes and ears of the

          4  Czar, you need somebody who is either with EEOC or

          5  some agency to go in, and go through these interview

          6  procedures and see exactly the horrific things that

          7  are done.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Sir, well put.

          9                 MR. NORVELL:  If I  - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  No, no, no,

         11  Sir.  No, Sir, I gave you a final thing.

         12                 MR. NORVELL:  Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  I appreciate

         14  that.  Sir?

         15                 MR. ANDREWS:  Yes, my name is Dessie

         16  Andrews and I am a Counselor for the Brooklyn

         17  Educational Opportunity Center. And a lot of what

         18  Ms. Barnes shared with you, a great deal of what Ms.

         19  Barnes shared with you, I would concur with that,

         20  because as a counselor I deal with the crisis of

         21  unemployment first- hand.  But I am just going to

         22  give you a little idea of what it is about the

         23  Brooklyn Educational Opportunity Center that makes

         24  us important as a crisis intervenor in regarding to

         25  the problems we are having here.
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          2                 The State University of New York,

          3  Brooklyn Educational Opportunity Center is one of

          4  the best and most affordable opportunities of New

          5  York City.  For over 30 years now, the State

          6  University, Education Opportunity Center have been

          7  providing educational and vocational training

          8  service to academically unprepared adults, many of

          9  whom who have not completed high school, have

         10  limited English proficiencies, or lack marketable

         11  skills.  Statewide over the past five years, more

         12  than 45,000 individuals have been able to complete

         13  academic, vocational training, and over 13,000 have

         14  achieved gainful employment.  More than 3,000 have

         15  entered college, and over 4,000 have earned a GED

         16  diploma.

         17                 In addition, over 600 business and

         18  industry partnerships have been provided with a

         19  highly, trained, targeted workforce.  Graduates have

         20  increased their earnings by approximately 80

         21  percent, and the State of New York has saved over 30

         22  million in Welfare payments.

         23                 Now the success of SUNY- Brooklyn

         24  Educational Opportunity Center is not alone.  We

         25  have other centers that are located in the Bronx,
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          2  Queens, and as well as Long Island.  And as a

          3  network of EOC placed throughout the State.  One of

          4  the most important segments of this program, EOC, is

          5  that it would take those individuals that have been

          6  unemployed, retrain in different fields, and provide

          7  on the job training as well as internship for them.

          8                 Some of the statistics we have found

          9  out in the last two years there has been a growing

         10  increase among blacks and Hispanics, and

         11  unemployment.  We also found out that there is a

         12  large number of individuals coming with

         13  dysfunctional family problems because of the lack of

         14  employment.  We are working towards a better image,

         15  as far as they are concerned in placing them in

         16  marketable positions, upgrading.  We have a wide

         17  variety of new programs we have added to our

         18  curriculum.  We have computer servicing repair A+

         19  certification, we local area network, we have MS

         20  Office, we have land, we have web design.  And this

         21  is important to our population that are going

         22  through this crisis, because it is free, it is free.

         23    The only thing they require normally is a minimal

         24  book deposit of like 20 or 30 dollars.  And this is

         25  refunded once they complete the program.
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          2                 So I think this is a wonderful

          3  opportunity to hit off part of the crisis that the

          4  community is facing.  And hopefully, some of you in

          5  here sitting right now, will get a chance to come

          6  over and visit our institution, we welcome you to do

          7  that.

          8                 I thank you very much.

          9                 MS. BARNES:  I am going to piggyback

         10  on, finish what he said.  The whole idea is that

         11  after they complete the training process, they then

         12  come to the Bridge Program, where we place them. So

         13  they have been trained in the specific skills where

         14  we placed them.  So we work as a team.  We have

         15  partnership located in the same building, and we

         16  have one, the two different services, training, and

         17  job placement in one building.  Training is

         18  upstairs, job placement is downstairs.  You do not

         19  have to work hard or look hard to find someone to

         20  assist you in job training and job placement after

         21  you complete the training process.

         22                 MR. ANDREWS:  I am not sure whether,

         23  in fact, where we are located, that we say we are

         24  located at 111 Livingston - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Do the whole
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          2  advertisement here.  You see, she got us all

          3  interested,  and now you had to finish by saying

          4  where you are located.  Where are you located?

          5                 MS. BARNES:  111 Livingston Street, I

          6  said in the heart of Downtown Brooklyn, that is

          7  between Borum and Joraleman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Very good.

          9                 MS. BARNES:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. ANDREWS:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Okay, thank

         12  you very much.  Okay, the next panel, Michael

         13  Halpert and Barbara Caporale.  Okay, so Counsel has

         14  reminded me that we are now in the two- minute rule,

         15  so we appreciate people adhering to that.  And hold

         16  on, while your fellow witness arrives.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  While this is

         18  happening, I would be remiss if I did not say that

         19  Council Member Barron was desperately come and see

         20  your testifying, Ms. Barnes, he was very insistent

         21  and we will pay for it later, but that happens.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  No, it is two.

         23                 MR. HALPERT:  Yes, I think she left.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  She left,

         25  okay, is there another person for that panel.  Let's
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          2  call everyone up, okay. Linda Brown, and Napoleon

          3  Morales.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Sir, why don't

          5  you begin. Let's try it again.

          6                 MR. HALPERT:  Hi, my name is Michael

          7  Halpert.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Now pull it a

          9  little bit closer to you.

         10                 MR. HALPERT:  Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  You are in

         12  business.

         13                 MR. HALPERT:  I originally was born

         14  and raised in the Lower East Side.  I took over a

         15  business when I was 19- years old by working two

         16  jobs in order to achieve that.  Since 9/11, I have

         17  lost all of that.  Forced to apply for Public

         18  Assistance, if you could believe that after paying

         19  taxes for 30 years, and see when they talk about

         20  rebuilding, they are not rebuilding for the

         21  inhabitants, they are rebuilding for someone new.

         22                 My question is, what do they plan to

         23  do with us? Well I already see that.  We are not

         24  figured anywhere into the equation at all.  And

         25  unless I am a corporation, I don't count. But yet, a

                                                            175

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  corporation has not paid the amount of dues that I

          3  have paid into this system, just like a lot of other

          4  small businesses.             If you think, right

          5  here in Downtown Manhattan is where it all started

          6  for this country.  And we are just passed over as

          7  expendable.  A developer could walk into any

          8  neighborhood and say, I want this for my own plan,

          9  and I don't care who is here, it is just like they

         10  did with the Indians, they just said, we want it, we

         11  will take it, it is ours.

         12                 I am also dealing with that because I

         13  am a resident of South Bridge Towers, and we have a

         14  developer trying to take us over at South Bridge

         15  Towers, as well.  So I am kind of having a battle on

         16  all fronts.  And I hoped someone would listen.

         17                 I actually wrote a plan called, "How

         18  to Save Our City,"  which I gave copies to you, and

         19  I wrote that quite a while back, and at that time,

         20  it fell on deaf ears and blind eyes.  And I hope

         21  this time it will not, because it lays how it would,

         22  how my plan would benefit to seniors, how it would

         23  benefit people of middle income, people of less than

         24  middle income.  It seems the dollars fight the law

         25  of gravity in this country, it seems to flow up,
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          2  instead of flowing down.  Now even the people who

          3  make the money as a middle class person, and pays

          4  the taxes and pays the bills for the country, cannot

          5  seem to benefit from their own tax dollars.  It

          6  seems to go to larger corporations.  For instance,

          7  American Express got $25 million from LMDC, Mike the

          8  jeweler got nothing.  Now if somebody can tell me

          9  where the fairness is in that?

         10                 I also was offered to retrain, go to

         11  retraining, learn another field.  To do what?  To be

         12  an apprentice, earn five dollars an hour.  I have

         13  had a career for 30 years, how am I expendable?  I

         14  am so good at what I do, that when I applied for

         15  jobs in the field, what they told me is that they

         16  did not a job for two bosses.  Tell me if you have

         17  an answer for that one.  I don't. I am 46- years-

         18  old, been training in this field since I am 11-

         19  years old, and I did not go to college.  I put three

         20  of my six sisters through college, I put nieces and

         21  nephews through school, all with my earnings.  And

         22  now I find out that I am expendable.  So if somebody

         23  could tell me that I am not, I would appreciate

         24  that.

         25                 Also, if I could add something.  I
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          2  hear all of this about racism.  I see it more as

          3  economicism (sic), if that is actually a word, if

          4  not I just invented it, put it into the dictionary

          5  or something.  But I see the distribution of wealth

          6  in this country is rapidly spaced to where we are

          7  actually making middle class people poor, and we are

          8  actually going to end up with 10 percent wealthy, 90

          9  percent poor.  If that is the case, then who is

         10  going to fight the wars, who is going to pay the

         11  bills?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  I would argue

         13  this, even under that, those who fought the wars

         14  will continue to fight these wars, and those who

         15  have paid and footed the bill, sadly, will continue

         16  to foot the bill.  Your point, Sir, very well made,

         17  Sir.  And some of us will respond when we are

         18  finished.

         19                 I believe that my brother, Napoleon,

         20  wishes to speak.

         21                 MR. MORALES:   Thank you for inviting

         22  me to testify to this Committee.  I was here last

         23  year, in 2002, I am sorry, I testified on

         24  unemployment insurance, nothing has changed, I am

         25  still not working.  I became unemployed after

                                                            178

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  September 11th.  I have been testifying at the

          3  Senate Hearing Committee, nothing is being said

          4  about unemployed people.

          5                 Basically, I recently sent two

          6  letters to the Mayor, and I have them here,

          7  requesting him to feed me and also feed the other

          8  people, but his advisors are playing games.  My

          9  letter went to the Human Resources Administration,

         10  and also to the Small Business Administration that

         11  is it.

         12                 Basically, we are here today to

         13  address the job crisis and poor economic condition

         14  in this City.  You heard people recounting their

         15  personal experiences in dealing with New York

         16  economy, while much of what you heard can be

         17  personally attributed to the tragedy of 9/11.  There

         18  is no doubt that the job crisis that exists today

         19  has been a fact of life for many who are poor, under

         20  educated, or people of color.

         21                 Like all the City residents, we have

         22  contributed regularly to the City, the State, and

         23  Federal governments by paying taxes.  Government

         24  economic development agencies use our tax dollars to

         25  give subsidies to encourage businesses and buildings
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          2  in our areas, and still there are no jobs.

          3                 Let me just say one thing though, I

          4  went to two trainings at the Consortium for Working

          5  Education.  And also I have two vouchers under the

          6  September 11th Program.  To use this, I went for

          7  almost one year for one training in computers, and I

          8  do not have a job, they do not secure a job, they do

          9  not guarantee anything to you.  These people are a

         10  fraud, then you guys should create a panel to

         11  investigate this nonsense.  There are a lot of

         12  people out there, at least the CW, Consortium for

         13  Working Education, and also this Brooklyn Community

         14  Services in Brooklyn, and also the Catholic

         15  Charities, many places, and I see all these people

         16  unemployed, the same faces.  And they are all

         17  wondering, what is the government doing?  They just

         18  want to see dead bodies, and then they are going to

         19  take action, because this is what is going to

         20  happen.  People are going to start to kill their

         21  life, because a lot of people are not working for

         22  more than three years. And this is basically what is

         23  going to happen, because a lot of people are just

         24  suffering the consequences.

         25                 How could you go to welfare, someone
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          2  like me who have been working for almost 8 years,

          3  and have a Bachelor Degree. I was told by the

          4  government to go and educate, I also have two or

          5  three trainings in different type of training, and

          6  they have not done anything for me.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Forgive me, 30

          8  seconds, Sit.

          9                 MR. MORALES:  Sorry, so that is it.

         10  That is why I am here to testify, and the whole City

         11  Council, do something about this.  Since September

         12  11th people are still three, and everything is

         13  brushed up under the rug, nothing has been done

         14  about it.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Thank you, Sir.

         17    Ma'am.

         18                 MS. BROWN:  Good afternoon.  My name

         19  is Linda Brown. I have been unemployed for like

         20  three years.  I worked for 17 and one- half years.

         21  I was born in Washington, D.C., I am from Maryland.

         22  And what I see of New York City, I am not very

         23  satisfied.  It is a great place to live, it is a

         24  great place to live, but if you cannot afford to

         25  live in a State, then why be there?  And I have been
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          2  suffering ever since I have been in this City.  I

          3  have tried to work, I have tried to raise my kids,

          4  but nothing I do is ever good enough, it never was

          5  enough income.

          6                 Okay, finally, I had to go on Public

          7  Assistance, on and off the system.  Going into

          8  training programs that only take money, they do not

          9  train, they just put you down.  Okay?  They take the

         10  money, they tell you, oh, we are going to give you

         11  training and education, but they do not do it.  I

         12  have been through this for three years.  I lost a

         13  daughter to the system, I had to take her to

         14  Maryland, just because I did want to go in the

         15  shelter system.  She was taken by the Maryland Court

         16  system, because I did not have enough to defend the

         17  right to get my daughter back, because I did not

         18  have a job.

         19                 When I had a job, ACS made

         20  accusations against, me. The Board of Education,

         21  they bothered my disabled child, they may her go

         22  practically crazy.  Okay?  So now, I have a 16-

         23  year- old that she is acting out because her sister

         24  is not there.  My husband, my ex, did not have a job

         25  to support us because he had issues of his. This is
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          2  a generational thing, and it has to stop.  Jobs need

          3  to be created.  I do not choose to, I was taking

          4  Paxil, I do not choose to be like that anymore.  I

          5  choose to get up.  Sure I miss my baby, and I have

          6  to do this for my babies, I will.

          7                 I am going to open a non- profit

          8  organization called, "Parents and Children Against

          9  Poverty."  Because when a piece of you is gone, I am

         10  telling, and this is going to be for every, it is

         11  not just for me, because I know people are

         12  suffering.

         13                 I do not care what color you are,

         14  money is not black, white, or blue, it is green.

         15  And all of us can aid to the economic system of New

         16  York City, if we would just stop.  We are God's

         17  people, all of us, regardless of color.  So stop all

         18  of this nonsense, and let's get together and build

         19  something for our children.  Our children are

         20  impressionable, they look at what we do, and they

         21  will copy the same behavior.  It is not a black

         22  thing, it is not a white thing, it is a togetherness

         23  thing.

         24                 And if we do not do this, we are

         25  going to have a bigger 9/11, because what God can do
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          2  is worse than what these people from other countries

          3  can do.  Let's get together and stop this thing

          4  about color, it is about love.

          5                 That is all I have to say.

          6                 MR. HALPERT:  Can I could add

          7  something behind her?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  If you can do

          9  it in 10 seconds, because I am going to call our

         10  final panel and make a statement.

         11                 MR. HALPERT:  Actually, I would like

         12  to bring something to your attention, I do not know

         13  if you are aware of it. But when they come out with

         14  these stats from analyst on unemployment, I have

         15  seen stuff that came out by Economic Development

         16  Corporation, by Downtown Alliance, and I am seeing

         17  that the figures that they are coming up with now, I

         18  went back to high school, after cutting high school

         19  to go to work, and I can do a better job than what

         20  they are doing.  When they talk about unemployment,

         21  they are not mentioning the people, number one, that

         22  were self- employed that were pushed out of

         23  business, because they are not in those stats.  They

         24  are not talking about people that have all ready

         25  exhausted their benefits, because they are no longer

                                                            184

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  in those stats.

          3                 These are the forgotten ones, and

          4  these are the ones that were actually contributors

          5  to our economic base, and yet, they are not there

          6  anymore.  So if you want to know why the City has no

          7  money, and the State has no money, that is why.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Mr. Halpert, I

          9  just want to ask a question about your own

         10  experience.

         11                 MR. HALPERT:  Yes, Sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  So did you own

         13  a business or work in a business?

         14                 MR. HALPERT:  I owned it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  You owned it.

         16                 MR. HALPERT:  I have owned a

         17  business, I acquired a business that was a 40- year-

         18  old business, I acquired it when I was 19.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And where was

         20  it?

         21                 MR. HALPERT:  Originally on William

         22  an Beakman, on the corner.  From there, I had my

         23  first experience with landlord/tenant court.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Just stay on

         25  my question here.

                                                            185

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2                 MR. HALPERT:  Yes, Sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  So you had the

          4  business, 9/11, obviously, created a huge turn,

          5  downturn in business all over Lower Manhattan.

          6                 MR. HALPERT:  Yes, I actually was on

          7  Nassau and Fulton right up to 9/11.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  So quite

          9  close.

         10                 MR. HALPERT:  Yes, two blocks.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Right.  And

         12  once the attack occurred and everything was shut

         13  down in the area, and then people started to re-

         14  establish businesses and get aid and all, what

         15  happened in your case, did you have an opportunity

         16  for any type of federal aid?

         17                 MR. HALPERT:  Actually, I applied for

         18  12 different programs, I got zero.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And did they

         20  give you a reason why?

         21                 MR. HALPERT:  Actually, let's see,

         22  the SBA told me that I did not qualify for Disaster

         23  SBA, but I could apply for regular SBA.  If that

         24  makes any sense to you, because it did not to me.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Did you ever
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          2  get any assistance from your City Councilman or any

          3  other elected official?

          4                 MR. HALPERT:  No, actually the

          5  benefits that I got was from FEMA, which was for

          6  rent assistance.  And now I am in court with my co-

          7  op manager, because they misappropriated FEMA's

          8  money, and took me to court for non- payment of

          9  rent.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  So the

         11  business is not, your business is no longer active?

         12                 MR. HALPERT:  No.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Well just to

         14  offer, I think you are represented by Councilman

         15  Gerson.

         16                 MR. HALPERT:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And I think

         18  his office would also be happy to have the care on

         19  your behalf and see --

         20                 MR. HALPERT:  Yes, actually, I have

         21  with Lisa Ruben several times there, - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Good.

         23                 MR. HALPERT: - -  and she has been

         24  trying to help me navigate my way through the

         25  problems with Public Assistance, because the
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          2  problems that I am having in landlord/tenant court

          3  is the judge finds  - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I do not mean

          5  to cut you off, thank you for answering my question.

          6                 MR. HALPERT:  Yes, Sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I just want to

          8  urge you, I think they can be helpful.

          9                 I want to say to the other two

         10  witnesses, I want to thank you and also say that

         11  what you are saying is, I as Chairman of the General

         12  Welfare Committee have experienced both of these

         13  issues.  And I think there is tremendous issues and

         14  concerns about Public Assistance system, how it does

         15  or does not train people.  We have had a lot of

         16  hearings on this, trying to push towards the kind of

         17  training that is more pertinent to the actual

         18  workforce, and I agree with the statement that I

         19  think, unfortunately, a lot of the trainers are

         20  making money, and the recipients are not getting a

         21  lot out of it.  But thank you very much.

         22                 MR. HALPERT:  Thank you for your

         23  time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Let me call up

         25  the final panel, and there may be two people that we
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          2  will hear from, both named Sanders.  I am not sure

          3  if these are the same last, but never least.  I have

          4  either John or James, and then I see of a Nick

          5  Sanders.  I am not sure if this is the same - -

          6  Okay, all right, well, I only had one name, and he

          7  ends up - -  Sir, just for the state of, for public

          8  affiliation, honesty in advertisement, you are not a

          9  relative to, to your knowledge you are not a

         10  relative of mine?

         11                 MR. SANDERS:  Not to my knowledge.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Okay.  And

         13  neither do I owe you any money?

         14                 MR. SANDERS:  No.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  All right, you

         16  are probably the one person in America that I do

         17  not, so we will hear from you, Sir.

         18                 MR. SANDERS:  Good afternoon.  My

         19  name is James John Nick Sanders, you got it right?

         20  And I am in the New York Unemployment Program, and I

         21  am unemployed.  It is about, if I were related to

         22  you, I would have had a job.

         23                 But anyway, I lost my job due to the

         24  World Trade Center incident, also.  And I got

         25  unemployment for one year, and after that was over,
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          2  they sent me to school, and they sent me for 12

          3  weeks, and they said, I need an additional 12 weeks

          4  to go into the job market.  And when I went to get

          5  the additional 12 weeks, they said they did not have

          6  the funds.  So they said, they are going to call me,

          7  they are going to call me, they never called me

          8  back.

          9                 But like the guy was saying, the

         10  training is not good enough to go into the job

         11  market anyway, they are just taking the money,

         12  taking the money, and taking the money.  I do not

         13  think that the private sector should handle the

         14  school, I think the City, State and Federal

         15  government should do that.  Because they are taking

         16  the money and run, they do not care whether you get

         17  a job or not.  You should all look into it to see

         18  that they are training people properly so that they

         19  can get a job.  Otherwise, they are going to a job

         20  for two weeks, and on unemployment again.

         21                 Now me, I am 60- years- old, it is

         22  not going to have too much affect on me, but the

         23  rest of the young people out there, it is going to

         24  have an affect on.  A lot of them out there are

         25  going crazy, because they have no jobs, they cannot
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          2  get a job, the ones coming out of school do not have

          3  no job.  And they are sending all the money into the

          4  war, sending all the young people to war.          How

          5  are you going to send a man to war to fight, they

          6  are all ready mad about what is going on over here.

          7  So I do not know what you are going to do about this

          8  school thing.  But all the kids, I say kids because

          9  I am 60, like I say, they do not have enough

         10  training after the school is up to get the job in

         11  the first place.  So people are just taking the

         12  money and run.

         13                 What you need is the address, check

         14  into those schools, see if they qualify, before they

         15  get the people to train for the job.  And have the

         16  people that are hiring to go to the school to hire

         17  the people for the job.

         18                 And I do not understand how

         19  contractors told me yesterday, and he is from

         20  Pennsylvania, and brought 125 people from

         21  Pennsylvania to New York to work.  What is wrong

         22  with the people in New York?  Why couldn't they get

         23  a contractor from New York?  How do you come from

         24  Pennsylvania, a contractor and bring 150 (sic)

         25  people with you, and people in New York do not have
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          2  a job?  And the contractor in New York did not get

          3  the job, I do not understand.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Well sit still,

          6  wait a minute now, wait a minute, this is a

          7  discussion, that means it is two ways.  I will let

          8  you go first, Bill, if you wish to.

          9                 Where do you start, Mr. Sanders?

         10  This is the, yours is, in one sense, the essence of

         11  the discussion that we had all day today, that New

         12  York City workers should be the cutting edge.  I am

         13  not saying that we cannot hire anyone from anywhere,

         14  but after we exhaust what we have here.  If we

         15  cannot find a qualified, capable, willing workers

         16  here, then by all means, business must look wherever

         17  they can to get these people.  But government does

         18  have an obligations to do a couple of things in the

         19  case that you spoke of, and I encourage you to take

         20  advantage of your City Councilperson. I know you all

         21  ready know who that person is, so you should make it

         22  your business to go there, that is your first line

         23  of defense in this business.

         24                 When you speak of proprietary schools

         25  or any of these other types of schools, the
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          2  government does have the responsibility to ensure

          3  that it is money is being well spent.

          4                 MR. SANDERS:  It is being well spent,

          5  but if you do not get a job, after the money is

          6  spent.  Well then from the government's point of

          7  view, or government should have the point of view

          8  that it is not well spent.  Well spent I would

          9  define as delivering a product, a very worthy

         10  product at the end of the expenditure.  The product

         11  in this sense is a person retrained or trained to go

         12  an deal with the workforce, to deal in the

         13  workforce, and not just for a month.

         14                 There should be follow- ups where we

         15  see over time, if this person remains in the

         16  workforce.  So I am going to look a little further

         17  in that, that is not really the domain of my

         18  Committee, and I am not even sure if it is within

         19  the General Welfare Committee, chaired by the very

         20  capable Bill DeBlasio, it sounds more like Consumer

         21  Affairs, where we look and see of this quality of

         22  the school.

         23                 However, I take great pride in saying

         24  every Councilman to my knowledge, or Councilperson

         25  to my knowledge is very interested in these issues.
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          2  And Phil Reed, who is the Chair of that Committee,

          3  Consumer Affairs, which I sit on, is very, very

          4  interested on these issues also.  I will bring this

          5  matter up to him to see if we can find something.

          6                 So now I can excuse you from that

          7  seat, and I will let, Counsel, I believe that we

          8  have handled everyone who wanted to speak, and we

          9  will have Council Member DeBlasio followed by

         10  Council Member Vann give their last words.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:   Thank you.  I

         12  want to thank my fellow Chairs of this hearing, I

         13  think it was a very productive day, and thank you

         14  again, to the staff for all the work they did.

         15                 I spoke to Council Member Barron and

         16  Council Member Seabrook yesterday, in anticipation

         17  of the hearing, and their key point was we need to

         18  make sure that we come out of this with an action

         19  plan.  I think we had a lot of good ideas today.

         20                 I thing we saw in the City's

         21  testimony some of what is going well, but also some

         22  challenges that we have to press the Administration

         23  on.  So I will just say the proverbial, this is the

         24  end, this is the beginning, and I look forward to

         25  more good work as these committees work together.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Council Member

          4  Vann.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  They say timing

          6  is everything, right?  I will just simply say that

          7  one of the significant, or the significance of the

          8  hearing is that it causes us to focus on what is a

          9  very, very significant problem, as everyone

         10  expressed.  And by doing that, hopefully, the

         11  Council, itself, will be focused on this crisis.  We

         12  cannot expect the Executive to do what we ourselves

         13  do not do.  And it is very important to hear from

         14  the people, as it were, the organizations,

         15  individuals, who are experiencing first hand, the

         16  results of failed policy or lack there of, quite

         17  frankly.

         18                 So it is more important than you

         19  know, that if we can generate this motion and

         20  movement from this, then reverberate throughout the

         21  Council and really create a priority for dealing

         22  with this crisis, and this will have been a very

         23  significant step forward.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Again, this is
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          2  not our great, great, great, great, great

          3  granddaddy's City Council.  We will continue to keep

          4  hammering these issues until something falls.  We,

          5  God willing, will not have hearing after hearing

          6  where the same faces keep coming back before us.

          7                 We will have to look into these

          8  matters of why people are going into training and it

          9  just is not working.  We will have to look into

         10  matters of why, if we are told that 12 more weeks is

         11  an appropriate amount of training, and then told,

         12  well, you cannot get them, seems to be a disconnect.

         13                 I will say this, I want to applaud my

         14  fellow Council people when Council Member DeBlasio

         15  and Council Member Vann came and said we must do

         16  this hearing on this issue, I was very, very quick

         17  to follow suit.

         18                 This is the first time that these

         19  three Committees have had the pleasure of working

         20  together, and I suspect that we are going to

         21  continue this type of assault that we have to make

         22  until these walls crumple, or they try to get rid of

         23  us from here.  But, well, you see they cannot do

         24  that, because we work for you, they did not put us

         25  here, they cannot take us out, only you can do that.
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          2                 So with that in mind, my friends, I

          3  want to really thank the staff for doing some

          4  incredible job.  If you see us well prepared, it is

          5  because good people who really do not get the credit

          6  much have done it.

          7                 I even want to thank my Sergeant- At-

          8  Arm back there, and the other ones, who have made us

          9  feel safe.  This has been a very passionate hearing,

         10  and you know, sometimes people's passion may get the

         11  better of them, and they may aim at the wrong

         12  person.  And our Sergeant-At-Arms understands that

         13  at a minimum you want to held the main at the right

         14  person, and it is not the City Council here.

         15                 Now having, yes, I better quit while

         16  I am ahead, and it is a long hearing.

         17                 With that in mind, my friends, I

         18  encourage everybody to get to know your City

         19  Councilperson, ensure that you put pressure on your

         20  City Councilperson to follow this issue through,

         21  that we are not going to go back into the wall, we

         22  are not going to become invisible.

         23                 I also encourage folks that you have

         24  to stay organized, you have to stay united, that

         25  otherwise, you will get very discouraged, you will
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          2  do all kinds of negative stuff.  But if you can

          3  organize yourselves, then you can see the victory,

          4  and you will be there when we get there.

          5                 Thank you very much for this hearing,

          6  thank you to my colleagues and to the staff again.

          7  This hearing is now adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing adjourned at 3:34 p.m.)

          9

         10                 (The following written testimony was

         11  read into the record.)

         12

         13  Testimony of:

         14  Alice Dividu

         15  Community Voices Heard

         16

         17                 My name is Alice Dividu, and I am a

         18  leader with Community Voices Heard.  I am here with

         19  a coalition of labor, community, and advocacy groups

         20  called LCAN.

         21                 The fight for jobs is not going to be

         22  easy, but I am willing to give up the time and

         23  energy because I need a job.  I am now receiving

         24  public assistance and because of time limits, the

         25  clock is ticking.
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          2                 I have been doing WEP for three and a

          3  half years. I get up at 5:30 in the morning to be at

          4  my WEP assignment at 8:00 a.m.  I clean 10 bathrooms

          5  a day and pick up garbage in over 100 cubicles.  I

          6  do 44 hours in two weeks.  But, I do not get paid.

          7                 Nobody I know wants to be on welfare

          8  or in WEP.  We want jobs where we can take care of

          9  our families, pay our rent, and do for ourselves.

         10  That is one of the reasons that we must all stand

         11  together to support this movement.  CVH is showing

         12  me that way to get things done.

         13                 We are here to ask the City Council

         14  to support us in our fight.  We thank them for

         15  calling this hearing today, but there is more that

         16  could be done.

         17                 The fact that the LMDC is thinking

         18  about spending money to build a rail link to JFK

         19  makes me sick.  They should be spending this money

         20  on jobs, training,  and housing for people in need!

         21                 The City Council should push the LMDC

         22  to provide funding for the Liberty Jobs Plan, a job

         23  creation program that would put thousands of New

         24  Yorkers to work.

         25                 People are hungry out here.  This is
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          2  serous.  What we need to rebuild New York and our

          3  communities are JOBS, JOBS, JOBS!

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 3:34 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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         17  set my hand this 22nd day of April 2004.
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